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NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE THIRTY FIFTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF PIONEER INVESTCORP
LIMITED will be held on Thursday 17th December, 2020 at 2.30 P.M. through Video Conferencing ("VC”)/ other Audio
Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transactthe following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To consider and adopt (a) the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2020
and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and (b) the audited consolidated financial statement
of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 and the report of Auditors thereon and in this regard, to
consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:

(a) The Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 including
audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020 and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that
date and the Reports of the Auditors and Directors thereon;

The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020
including audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020 and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year
ended on that date.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

2. To appoint Mr. Anand Brijendra Desai (Din: 01488287) as Independent Director.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152, 160, Schedule IV and all other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act’) read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable rules, if any, (including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s)
thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and subject to the provisions of the Articles of
Association of the Company, and basis the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the
Board of Directors of the Company, Mr. Anand Brijendra Desai (Din: 01488287), who was appointed as an Additional
Director (Independent non-executive) pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 and other applicable provisions of the
Act to hold Office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received a
notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act, proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a period of five (5) consecutive years from the date of his
appointment by the Board, not liable to retire by rotation.”

To re-appoint Mrs. Kamlini Chaitan Maniar (DIN 06926167) as Independent Director.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152, 160, Schedule IV and all other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act’) read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable rules, if any, (including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s)
thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and subject to the provisions of the Articles of
Association of the Company, and basis the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the
Board of Directors of the Company, Mrs. Kamlini Chaitan Maniar (DIN 06926167), who was appointed as an Director
(Independent non-executive) pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 and other applicable provisions of the Act to
hold Office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of her the Company has received a notice in
writing under Section 160 of the Act, proposing her candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby
reappointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a period of five (5) consecutive years from the date of her
reappointment by the Board, not liable to retire by rotation.”




4. To authorise Board of Directors for issuance and allotment of Secured Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCD's”)
aggregating up to Rs. 300 Crores in such tranches on such terms and conditions to be decided by the Board of
Directors.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 42, 71 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act'), and the rules made thereunder, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue
And Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008, as amended, the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999,
including any statutory modifications or amendments thereto or re-enactments or substitutions made thereof for the
time being in force, the rules, regulations, guidelines, notifications, clarifications and circulars, if any, prescribed by
the Government of India, Reserve Bank of India, SEBI and/ or any other regulatory authority, whether in India or
abroad, and in accordance with the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association of the Company and
subject to such approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions as may be necessary from any regulatory authority
and subject to such conditions as may be prescribed by such regulatory authority while granting such approvals,
consents, permissions and sanctions, the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of
Directors (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include any Committee or authorised
person(s) which the Board has constituted or appointed to exercise its powers, as the case may be, including the
powers, conferred by this Resolution), to make offer(s) or invitation(s) to subscribe for a Secured Redeemable Non-
Convertible Debentures in one or more series, denominated in Indian rupees including but not limited to
subordinated debentures, bonds, and/or other debt securities, etc. (“NCD's”), on a private placement basis, in one
or more tranches, during the period of one year from the date of passing of Special resolution aggregating up to Rs
300 Crores (Rupees Three hundred Crores only), on such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors of the
Company may, from time to time, determine and consider proper and in the best interest of the Company;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board/Committee, as the case
may be, be and is hereby authorized to determine and consider terms that are proper and most beneficial to the
Company including inter-alia, without limitation, the terms of issue including the class of investors to whom the

NCDs are to be issued, time, securities to be offered, the number of NCDs, tranches, issue price, tenor, interest rate,
premium/ discount, utilization of the issue proceeds, etc. and to do all such acts and things and deal with all such
matters and also to take all such steps as may be necessary and to sign and execute any deeds/ documents/
undertakings/ agreements/ papers/ writings, as may be required in this regard and matters connected therewith or
incidental thereto.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

Registered Office : For Pioneer Investcorp Limited

1218, Maker Chambers V, Nariman Point,
Mumbai — 400 021.
Date: 11th November, 2020.

Place: Mumbai. Amit Chandra

Company secretary




IMPORTANT NOTES:

1.

Considering the present Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its circular dated
September 8, 2020 read together with circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 5, 2020 (collectively
referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted convening the Annual General Meeting (“AGM” / “Meeting”) through
Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), without the physical presence of the members
at a common venue. In accordance with the MCA Circulars, provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act') and the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”), the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM. The deemed venue for the
AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company.

A statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Act, relating to the Special Business to be transacted at the AGM is
annexed hereto.

Generally, a member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a
poll instead of himself/itself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held
through VC / OAVM pursuant to the MCA Circulars, physical attendance of members has been dispensed with.
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for the AGM and hence the
Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed hereto.

Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the route map of the venue of the Meeting is not annexed hereto.

Details of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment at this Meeting are provided in the “Annexure” to the
Notice.

DISPATCH OF ANNUAL REPORT THROUGH ELECTRONIC MODE:

In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, Notice of the AGM along with the
Annual Report 2019-20 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are
registered with the Company / Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2019-20 will also
be available on the Company's website www.pinc.co.in, website of the Stock Exchanges, i.e., BSE Limited at
www.bseindia.com and on the website of Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent, Satellite Corporate Services
Private Limited at https://www.satellitecorporate.com.

For receiving all communication (including Annual Report) from the Company electronically:

(@) Members holding shares in physical mode and who have not registered / updated their email address with the
Company are requested to register / update the same by writing to the Company with details of folio number
and attaching a self-attested copy of PAN card at investor.relations@pinc.co.in or to Satellite at
service@satellitecorporate.com or scs_pl@yahoo.co.in

(b) Members holding shares in dematerialised mode are requested to register / update their email addresses with
the relevant Depository Participant.

PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE E-VOTING:

8. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read

with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended, and Regulation 44 of SEBI Listing
Regulations, the Company is providing to its members facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed
to be passed at AGM by electronic means (“e-voting”). Members may cast their votes remotely, using an electronic
voting system on the dates mentioned herein below (“remote e-voting").

0] The voting period begins on Monday, 14th December 2020 at 10.00 hrs and ends on Wednesday, 16th
December 2020 at 17.00 hrs. During this period shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date Thursday, 10th December 2020 may cast their
vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a
resolution is cast by the Member, he shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. The voting rights of
Members (for voting through remote e-voting before the AGM and e-voting during the AGM) shall be in
proportion to their shares held in the paid up equity share capital of the Company as on cut-off date i.e.
Thursday, 10th December 2020.



(ii)

(i)
(iv)
(v)

(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

(ix)
)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting
venue.

The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

Click on “Shareholders” module.

Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.
Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-
voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

If you are afirsttime user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable
for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant
are requested to use the sequence number which is printed on Postal Ballot /
Attendance Slip indicated in the PAN field

Dividend Bank | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded

Details or in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.

Date of birth If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the
member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction
).

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However,
shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein they are required
to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also
used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote,
provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your
password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions
contained in this Notice.

Click onthe EVSN for the relevant PIONEER INVESTCORP LIMITED

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for
voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and
option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click onthe “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and
accordingly modify your vote.



XVi.
XVii.

Xviii.

XiX

Onceyou “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification
code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app “m-Voting”. The m-Voting app can be
downloaded from respective Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while Remote
Voting on your mobile.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE
DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS
PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE:

1.

For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company RTA email id. at investor.relations@pinc.co.in or
to RTA email id service@satellitecorporate.com or scs_pl@yahoo.co.in.

For Demat shareholders -, please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16 digit beneficiary ID or NSDL-16 digit
DPID + CLID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned
copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to by email to Company at
investor.relations@pinc.co.in or to RTA email id service@satellitecorporate.com or scs_pl@yahoo.co.in.

The company/RTA shall co-ordinate with CDSL and provide the login credentials to the above mentioned
shareholders.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1.

Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the CDSL e-Voting
system. Shareholders may access the same at https://www.evotingindia.com under shareholders/members
login by using the remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in shareholder/members
login where the EVSN of Company will be displayed.

Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops /IPads for better experience.

Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves
as a speaker by sending their requisition advance atleast 6 days prior to meeting mentioning their name,
demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). The shareholders who do
not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 6 days prior to meeting
mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id).
These queries will be replied by the company suitably by email.

Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their
views/ask questions during the meeting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1.

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-
voting.

Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote
on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to
vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM.



If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same
shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility , then the votes cast by such
shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the
shareholders attending the meeting.

Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will
not be eligible to vote atthe AGM.

(xx) Note for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians

XXii.

XXiii

XXiv

XXV

i) Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log
on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

ii) A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

iii) After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password.
The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

iv) The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

v) A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of
the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

vi) Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority
letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to
vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; investor.relations@pinc.co.in, if they
have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify
the same.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending Annual General Meeting & e-Voting from the e-Voting
System, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions ('FAQs") and e-voting manual available at
www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact
Mr. Nitin Kunder (022-23058738) or Mr. Mehboob Lakhani (022-23058543) or Mr. Rakesh Dalvi (022-
23058542).

The Board of Directors has appointed Shri. Aspi Bhesania proprietor of Aspi Bhesania & Associates, Company
Secretary in Whole Time Practice (ICSI membership number: 6119 C.P. n0.9657) as the scrutinizer to
scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. The results declared along with the
Scrutinizer's report shall be placed on the Company's website www.pinc.co.in and and on the website of CDSL
and communicated to the Stock Exchange.

The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of e-voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast during
the Meeting, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting before the Meeting and make, not later
than 48 hours of conclusion of the Meeting, a consolidated Scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast in favour
or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign the same.

The Results declared alongwith the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website
www.pinc.co.in and on the website of CDSL and communicated to the BSE Limited where the shares of the
Company are listed. The results shall also be displayed on the Notice Board at the Registered Office of the
Company.

Subject to the receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions forming part of the AGM Notice shall be
deemed to be passed on the date of the AGM i.e. 17th December, 2020



9.

10.

1.

12

13.

14.

xxvi Please note the important dates

EVENT DATE TIME
CUT OFF DATE FOR VOTING Thursday, 10/12/2020 -
EVOTING START Monday, 14/12/2020 10.00 A.M
EVOTING END Wednesday, 16/12/2020 05.00 PM
AGM DATE Thursday, 17/12/2020 02.30 PM

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be open for inspection at
the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours (11.00 am to 3.00 pm) on all working days
except Saturdays, up to and including the date of the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available electronically for inspection without any fee by the
members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM. Members seeking to inspect such
documents can send an email to investor.relations@pinc.co.in.

Members seeking any information with regard to accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM, are requested to
write to the Company on or before Thursday, 10th December, 2020 through email on investor.relations@pinc.co.in.
The same will be replied by the Company suitably.

Under Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 (205A of the Companies Act, 1956) the amount of dividend remaining
unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the due date is required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF), constituted by the Central Government. Shares on which dividend remains
unclaimed for seven consecutive years will be transferred to the IEPF as per Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the applicable rules.

The Company has transferred the unpaid or unclaimed dividends declared up to financial years 2011-12, from time to
time, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”) established by the Central Government. Details of
dividends so far transferred to the IEPF Authority are available on the website of IEPF Authority and the same can be
accessed through the link: www.iepf.gov.in.

Further Shares on which dividend remains unclaimed for seven consecutive years will be transferred to the IEPF as
per Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable rules.

Members may note that shares as well as unclaimed dividends transferred to IEPF Authority can be claimed back
from the IEPF Authority.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and their shareholding and Register of Contract or
Arrangements in which Directors are interested are available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company
during business hours between 11.00 AM to 3.00 PM. except on Saturdays and holidays. Members seeking to
inspect such documents can send an email to investor.relations@pinc.co.in.

With a view to using natural resources responsibly, Company request members who are holding Shares in demat to
update their email address with their depository participant and those who are holding shares in physical from to
update their email address to Company's Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA).

Non-resident Indian Members are requested to inform about the following to the Company or its RTA or the
concerned DP as the case may be, immediately:

a. the change in the residential status and

b. the particulars of the NRE Account with a Bank in India with complete name, branch, account type,
account number and address of the bank with pin code, if not furnished earlier.



15.

16.

17.

18.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number
(PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore,
requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts.
Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company/Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent (RTA).

In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, Notice of the AGM along with the
Annual Report 2019-20 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are
registered with the Company/Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2019-20 will also
be available in downloaded form on the Company's website at www.pinc.co.in, websites of the Stock Exchange, i.e.,
BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and on the website of Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent, Satellite
Corporate Services Private Limited at https://www.satellitecorporate.com

Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has mandated that securities of listed companies can be
transferred only in dematerialised form w.e.f. April 1, 2019. Accordingly, the Company / Satellite have stopped
accepting any fresh lodgement of transfer of shares in physical form. Members holding shares in physical form are
advised to avail of the facility of dematerialisation.

The term 'Members' has been used to denote Shareholders of Pioneer Investcorp Limited.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Registered Office : For Pioneer Investcorp Limited

1218, Maker Chambers V,
Nariman Point,

Mumbai — 400 021.

Date: 11th November, 2020.

Place: Mumbai. Amit Chandra

Company secretary



Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 setting out all material facts
relating to special business mentioned in the Notice:

ltem No. 2

Mr. Anand Brijendra Desai (Din: 01488287), who was appointed as an Additional Director (Independent — Non-
executive) of the Company w.e.f. December 12th, 2019 pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act’), holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the
Company or the last date on which the Annual General Meeting should have been held, whichever is earlier and is
eligible for appointment. In terms of Section 160 of the Act, the Company has received a notice in writing from a
Member signifying his intention to propose the candidature of Mr. Anand Brijendra Desai (Din: 01488287) for the
office of Director. Mr. A. B. Desai has furnished consent/declarations for his appointment as required under the Act
and the Rules made there under.

Anand Desai is a qualified Chartered Accountant with immense and varied experience spanning 40 years. Anand
was an Investment Banker by profession prior to joining PINC Board, he worked with J. M. Financial & Kotak
Mahindra.

Anand has since set up his own Business Advisory Consultancy “MultiConsult”, and brings his rich and varied
experience in offering strategic advise to Indian and International Corporate.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee (‘(N&RC') had assessed the profile of Mr. Desai and having found him to
be 'Fit and Proper', recommended his appointment to the Board of Directors. In terms of Sections 149, 152, 160 read
with Schedule IV of the Act, the Board of Directors of the Company, basis the recommendation of the N&RC, have
reviewed the profile of Mr. Desai and the declarations that he meets the criteria of independence as prescribed both
under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Act and under Regulation 16(1) (b) of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Board is of opinion that he
fulfils the criteria of independence.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Desai meets the fit and proper criteria and is a person of integrity, and has the
necessary knowledge, experience and expertise for being appointed as an Independent Director. Considering his
vast expertise and knowledge in the field of Investment Banking, Finance, Corporate Advisory, Consultancy, it would
be in the interest of the Company that Mr. Desai be appointed as an Independent Director on the Board of the
Company.

Mr. Desai's appointment is in compliance with the provisions of applicable statutory Act, Rules and Regulations. (For
detailed experience statement, please refer the enclosed profile).

Your Directors, therefore, recommends the appointment of Mr. Desai (DIN: 01488287) as an Independent non-
executive Director of the Company, for a period of five (5) years, not liable to retire by rotation, as set forth in Item No.
2 of this Notice.

Save and except Mr. Desai and his relatives, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives
are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the above Resolution.

Additional information on Directors being appointed/re-appointed as required under Regulation 36(3) the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial
Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in the order of the items
mentioned in the Notice:



THE STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO SECRETARIAL STANDARD- Il ON GENERAL MEETING AND
SEBILODR REGULATIONS ARE AS UNDER:

Particulars (Name) Mr. Anand Brijendra Desai

Director Identification Number 01488287

Age 65

Date of Birth 05/04/1956

Date of first Appointment on Board 18/01/2008

Qualification Chartered Accountant (CA)

Experience/Expertise 40 years / Investment Banking

Terms and Conditions of Appointment or Independent non-executive Director of the

re-appointed along with remuneration Company, for a period of five (5) years, not
liable to retire by rotation

The last drawn remuneration Nil

Shareholding in the Company Nil

Relationship with Other Directors, Manager and other Nil
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company

The Number of Meetings of the Board attended 5

during the year

Other Directorships Multi Consult Private Limited
Memberships/ Chairmanship of Committees Committee Membership: Nil

Committee Chairmanship: Nil

ltem No. 3

Mrs. Kamlini Chaitan Maniar (Din: 06926167), who was appointed as an Director (Independent — Non-executive) of
the Company w.e.f. August 28th, 2015 for a period of consecutive period of 5 years, not liable to retire by rotation,
pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act),
holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company or the last date on which the Annual
General Meeting should have been held, whichever is earlier and is eligible for reappointment. In terms of Section
149(10) read with Section 160 of the Act, the Company has received a notice in writing from a Member signifying his
intention to propose the candidature of Mrs. Kamlini Chaitan Maniar (Din: 06926167) for the office of Director. Mrs. K.
C. Maniar has furnished consent/declarations for her reappointment as required under the Act and the Rules made
there under.

Mrs. Maniar is a qualified LLB with experience of over 3 decades in the field of Corporate Finance and Banking. Mrs.
Maniar was an ex-banker by profession prior to joining PINC Board, she worked with Bank of India as a Senior
Banker, with 32 years of experience of core area expertise in Corporate Financing, Foreign Exchange, Diamond
Business financing and retail Banking operations. She also headed as CEO for almost 10 years with Ador Finance
Ltd., an RBI registered NBFC & an affiliate Company of Ador Weldings Ltd. handling lending, Share/Debenture
Issues, Foreign Loan tie-ups & Share Transfer Registry.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee (N&RC') had assessed the profile of Mrs. Maniar and having found her
to be 'Fit and Proper', recommended her reappointment to the Board of Directors. In terms of Sections 149, 152, 160
read with Schedule IV of the Act, the Board of Directors of the Company, basis the recommendation of the N&RC,
have reviewed the profile of Mrs. Maniar and the declarations that she meets the criteria of independence as
prescribed both under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Act and under Regulation 16(1) (b) of the Securities and



Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Board is of
opinion that she fulfils the criteria of independence.

In the opinion of the Board, Mrs. Maniar meets the fit and proper criteria and is a person of integrity, and has the
necessary knowledge, experience and expertise for being reappointed as an Independent Director. Considering her
vast expertise and knowledge in the field of Corporate Finance and Banking, it would be in the interest of the
Company that Mrs. Maniar be reappointed as an Independent Director on the Board of the Company.

Mrs. Maniar's reappointment is in compliance with the provisions of applicable statutory Act, Rules and Regulations.
(For detailed experience statement, please refer the enclosed profile).

Your Directors, therefore, recommends the reappointment of Mrs. Maniar (DIN: 06926167) as an Independent non-
executive Director of the Company, for a period of five (5) years, not liable to retire by rotation, as set forth in ltem No.
3 of this Notice.

Save and except Mrs. Maniar and her relatives, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their
relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the above Resolution.

Additional information on Directors being appointed/re-appointed as required under Regulation 36(3) the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial
Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in the order of the items
mentioned in the Notice:

THE STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO SECRETARIAL STANDARD- I| ON GENERAL MEETING AND
SEBILODR REGULATIONS ARE AS UNDER:

Particulars (Name) Mrs. Kamlini Chaitan Maniar

Director Identification Number 01488287

Age 81

Date of Birth 24/04/1939

Date of first Appointment on Board 22/06/2015

Qualification LLB

Experience/Expertise 32 years / Corporate Finance & Banking

Terms and Conditions of Appointment or Independent non-executive Director of the

re-appointed along with remuneration Company, for a period of five (5) years, not
liable to retire by rotation

The last drawn remuneration Nil

Shareholding in the Company Nil

Relationship with Other Directors, Manager and other Nil
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company

The Number of Meetings of the Board attended 3
during the year

Other Directorships Foods & Inns Limited
Muller and Phipps (India) Limited

Memberships/ Chairmanship of Committees Committee Membership: 2

Committee Chairmanship: Nil




ltem No. 4

The Board of Directors at its meeting dated 11th November, 2020 approved for Issuance and allotment of Secured
Non-Convertible Debentures including but not limited to subordinated debentures, bonds, and/or other debt
securities, etc. (“NCD's”) on a private placement basis, aggregating upto Rs.300 Crores on such terms and
conditions as the Board of Directors of the Company may, from time to time, determine and consider proper and in
the best interest of the Company subject to approval by the Shareholders through Special Resolution.

As per Section 71 of the Companies Act, 2013 a company may issue debentures with respect to Section 42 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus & Allotment of Securities) Second Amendment
Rules, 2018 states that a Company shall not make an offer or invitation to subscribe to securities through private
placement unless the proposed offer of securities or invitation to subscribe securities has been previously approved
by the shareholders of the company, by a special resolution, for each of the Offers or Invitations. Third Proviso to Rule
14(1) states that in case of offer or invitation for non-convertible debentures, where the proposed amount to be raised
through such offer or invitation exceeds the limits as specified in Section 180(1)(c) of the Act, it shall be sufficient if
the company passes a previous special resolution only once in a year for all the offers or invitation for such
debentures during the year.

Accordingly, the approval of the members is sought by way of special resolution to issue and allot secured non-
convertible debentures including but not limited to subordinated debentures, bonds, and/or other debt securities,
etc. (“NCD's”) on a private placement basis aggregating upto Rs. 300 Crores, in such tranches and as per the terms
to be decided by the Board.

The Board therefore commends the passing of the Special Resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of the accompanying
Notice for approval by the members of the Company.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in any way concerned or interested, financially
or otherwise in this Special Resolution as set out at ltem No. 4 of the accompanying Notice.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
To The Members,

The Board of Directors are pleased to present 35th Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company along
with the Audited Statements of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

Financial Highlights 2019-2020 2018-2019
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)

Profit before Tax 340.07 21.80

Less/(Add): Tax expenses 122.56 (12.21)

Net Profit after Tax 217.51 34.01

Economic Review in the midst of COVID-19 pandemic

The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant disturbance and
slowdown of economic activity. In many countries, businesses are being forced to cease or limit their operations for long
or indefinite periods of time. Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social
distancing and closures of non-essential services have triggered significant disruptions to businesses worldwide,
resulting in an economic slowdown.

COVID-19 is significantly impacting business operation of the companies, by way of interruption in production, supply
chain disruption, unavailability of personnel, closure / lockdown of production facilities etc. On March 24, 2020, the
Government of India ordered a nationwide lockdowns in a phase manner to prevent community spread of COVID-19 in
India resulting in significant reduction in economic activities.

The steps initiated by various governments to contain the pandemic, like closing of borders and lockdown restrictions,
resulted in significant disruption to people and businesses. Consequently, market demand and supply chains have been
affected, significantly increasing the risk of a global economic recession. The pandemic has impacted, and may further
impact, all the stakeholders of the Society. Further, due to the uncertainty surrounding this risk and the unavailability of a
certified vaccine or cure to-date, the world economic growth and its estimates has taken severe beating resulting in
downgrade of India's economic growth also.

Overview of Financial Performance

The above mentioned disturbances, had also impacted Company's performance both on the business and revenue front,
which reflected in Company's weaker revenue generation that is Investment Banking Income both in Equity and Debt
segment and other being investment activities in Government Securities / Corporate Bonds.

The company's standalone income from operations during the Financial Year 2019-20 was increased to Rs.3511.85
lakhs as compared to Rs.3164.22 lakhs during previous Financial Year 2018-19, and also consolidated Income from
operations increased to Rs.4288.35 lakhs as against Rs. 3634.15 lakhs in the previous year.

No material changes and commitments have occurred after the close of the year till the date of this Report, which affect
the financial position of the Company.

Share Capital

During the year under review, the Company's Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Equity Share Capital remains unchanged at
Rs.1229.69 lakhs as at March 31st, 2020.

Dividend

To strengthen Company's financial position, during this Covid-19 pandemic, the Board of Directors of the Company has
decided not to recommend dividend for the Financial Year 2019-20.



Subsidiary Companies

During the Financial Year 2019-20, there were no changes in status of existing six wholly owned subsidiaries as
compared to previous year.

Performance and Financial Position of Subsidiaries

As required under Rule 5 and Rule 8(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, a report on the highlights of
performance of subsidiaries, and their contribution to the overall performance of the Company is appended as
“Annexure 7” to the Annual Report. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act, a statement containing salient
features of financial statement of subsidiaries in Form AOC-1 is annexed to the Consolidated Financial Statement in the
Annual Report.

Consolidated Financial Statements

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a consolidated financial statement of the Company along with its
6(six) Wholly owned Subsidiaries has been prepared in the same form and manner as that of the Company which shall be
laid before the ensuing AGM along with the laying of the Company's Standalone Financial Statement under Section
129(2).

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Accounting Standard (AS-21), the Consolidated Financial Statements notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company along with its six
Wholly owned subsidiaries for the year ended March 31, 2020 forms part of this Annual Report.

The Board of Directors of the Company has resolved not to publish and attach copies of the standalone Annual Audited
Accounts of all its existing subsidiaries and instead to publish the Consolidated Accounts pursuant to Section 136(1) of
the Act. Annual Audited Accounts of all its existing subsidiaries can also be obtained by members of the Company by
making written request to the Company. The Accounts of these subsidiaries are also available for inspection to members
of the Company at the Registered Office of the Company during the Company's business hours. The Company has
attached the Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annual Report, which includes Accounts of all its six existing
subsidiaries.

Directors Responsibility Statement
Your Directors state that:

i) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2020, the applicable Accounting
Standards read with requirements set out under Schedule 1l of the Companies Act, 2013 have been followed
and there are no material departures from the same;

i) They have selected such accounting policies and have applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31st March, 2020 and of the Profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;

iii)  They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities; and

iv)  The annexed Annual Accounts for the Accounting Year ended on 31st March, 2020, have been prepared on a
going concern basis;

V) They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and the such internal financial
controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

vi)  They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Management Discussion and Analysis

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, is given as a separate statement in the
Annual Report.
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Directors and Key Management Personnel
A.T. Krishnakumar - Independent Non-executive

During the year end under review, Mr. A. T. Krishnakumar was appointed as Additional Director on the Board of the
Company w.e.f. August 23rd, 2019 and he was later appointed by the shareholders of the Company in the last AGM of the
Company held on 24th September, 2019, as Independent Non—executive Director for a period of 5 years, not to liable to
retire by rotation.

C.C. Dalal -Independent Non-executive

Mr. C. C. Dalal, the long serving independent Director of the Company resignhed on December 12th, 2019, on health
ground. The Board place on record sincere appreciation and gratitude to Mr. C. C. Dalal, for his valuable guidance in the
growth of PINC Group for more than three decades.

A.B. Desai—Independent Non-executive

Mr. A. B. Desai (Din: 01488287), was appointed as an Additional Director (Independent — Non-executive) by the Board of
Directors of the Company w.e.f. December 12th, 2019 pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act’), holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the
Company or the last date on which the Annual General Meeting should have been held.

Mr. Desai is a CA with nearly Four (4) decades of experience in the field of Investment Banking, Corporate Finance,
Corporate Advisory, and Consultancy.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee ('N&RC') had assessed the profile of Mr. Desai and having found him to be
'Fit and Proper', recommended his appointment to the Board of Directors. In terms of Sections 149, 152, 160 read with
Schedule IV of the Act, the Board of Directors of the Company, basis the recommendation of the N&RC, have reviewed
the profile of Mr. Desai and the declarations that he meets the criteria of independence as prescribed both under sub-
section (6) of Section 149 of the Act and under Regulation 16(1) (b) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Board is of opinion that he fulfils the criteria of
independence.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Desai meets the fit and proper criteria and is a person of integrity, and has the necessary
knowledge, experience and expertise for being appointed as an Independent Director. Considering his vast expertise
and knowledge in the field of Investment Banking, Corporate Finance, Corporate Advisory, and Consultancy, it would be
in the interest of the Company that Mr. Desai is appointed as an Independent Director on the Board of the Company.

K. C. Maniar - Independent Non-executive

Mrs. K. C. Maniar, retires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, and being eligible for reappointment, she offers herself
for reappointment. Mrs. Maniar, an ex-banker with working experience of 32 years in the field of Corporate Finance, and
Banking.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee (N&RC') has assessed the profile of Mrs. Maniar and having found her to be
'Fit and Proper', recommended her reappointment to the Board of Directors. In terms of Sections 149, 152, 160 read with
Schedule IV of the Act, the Board of Directors of the Company, basis the recommendation of the N&RC, have reviewed
the profile of Mrs. Maniar and the declarations that she meets the criteria of independence as prescribed both under sub-
section (6) of Section 149 of the Act and under Regulation 16(1) (b) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Board is of opinion that she fulfils the criteria of
independence.

In the opinion of the Board, Mrs. Maniar meets the fit and proper criteria and is a person of integrity, and has the
necessary knowledge, experience and expertise for being reappointed as an Independent Director. Considering her vast
expertise and knowledge in the field of Corporate Finance, and Banking, it would be in the interest of the Company that
Mrs. Maniar is reappointed as an Independent Director on the Board of the Company.



Annual Evaluation

Your Company has laid down Policy in which criteria for performance evaluation of the Directors including Chairperson,
Managing Director, Board Committees and Board as a whole in line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and
SEBI's LODR Regulations. The Policy continued to assist the Company the manner in which formal annual evaluation
should be made.

Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance practices are a reflection of Company's core value system encompassing of culture, policies, and
relationships with our stakeholders. Integrity and transparency are keys to Company's corporate governance practices
to ensure that Company gain and retain the trust of its stakeholders at all times. Corporate governance is about
maximizing shareholder value legally, ethically and sustainably. As part of the Company's efforts towards better
corporate practice and transparency, a separate report on Corporate Governance compliances is included in the Annual
Report.

Contracts and Arrangement with Related Parties

The Company's major related party transactions are generally with its Wholly owned subsidiaries. All the contracts /
arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were in its ordinary
course of business and on an arm's length basis. There were no materially significant transactions with related parties
including promoters, directors, key managerial personnel, subsidiaries or relatives of the Directors during the financial
year which could lead to a potential conflict with the interest between the company and these parties. The details of the
transactions with related parties, if any, were placed before the Audit Committee from time to time. There were no
material individual transactions with related parties, which were not in the ordinary course of business of the Company,
nor were there any transactions with related parties, which were not on arm's length basis. Accordingly the disclosure in
Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company for the year under review. Suitable disclosure as required by the
Accounting Standards (AS-18) has been made in the notes to the Financial Statements.

Prior omnibus approval for normal day to day transactions is also obtained from the Audit Committee for the related party
transactions which are repetitive in nature as well as for the business transactions which cannot be foreseen and
accordingly the required disclosures are made to the Committee for their approval.

The Policy on materiality of related party transactions and dealing with related party transactions as approved by the
Board may be accessed on the Company's website at www.pinc.co.in. Your Directors draw attention of the members to
Note no.33 to the financial statement which sets out related party transactions disclosures.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014, your Company has established Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR') Committee. During the
financial year 2019-20, the Company has spent Rs.13 lakhs on CSR activities as approved by the Board of the Company.
The disclosure in the Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed herewith marked as Annexure 2.

Risk Management Policy

Company's Risk Management Policy continued to guide the Board on risk assessment, management and contributes to
controls, manage, measure and mitigate the risk faced by the company in the day to day operation. The Risk
Management policy intends to cover serious concerns that could have risk impact on the operations and performance of
the business of the Company as well as its Wholly Owned Subsidiaries.

Internal Financial Controls

Your Company has implemented adequate procedures and internal controls which provide reasonable assurance
regarding reliability of financial reporting and preparation of financial statements. Further, the Board also ensures
regularly that Internal Financial controls are functioning efficiently in the ordinary course of business.

Employee Stock Option Scheme

The Employee Stock Option Scheme is administered by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board. The



disclosures required to be made in the Directors' Report in respect of Employees Option Schemes, in terms of the SEBI
(Employee Stock Option Scheme) Guidelines, 1999, are mentioned in the Annexure 3, forming part of the Directors'
Report.

Out of the 13,14,000 Stock Options granted to the Employees of the Company by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee third tranche of 25% of granted Stock options has been vested during the year end under review, as per the
terms and conditions of the grant.

Auditors and Auditors Report

As members of the Company are aware that the Company in order to comply with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under, relating to mandatory rotation of Statutory Auditors, the Company
has obtained members approval in the AGM to appoint J. D. Jhaveri & Associates, Chartered Accountant (Firm Reg. no.
111850W) as the statutory auditors of the Company, to hold office for a period of five consecutive years commencing from
the Financial Year 2017-18, on a remuneration that may be determined by the audit committee in consultation with the
auditors, and that such remuneration may be paid on a progressive billing basis. The Auditors have confirmed that they
are not disqualified from continuing as Auditors of the Company. The requirement for the annual ratification of auditors'
appointment at the AGM has been omitted pursuantto Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 notified on May 7, 2018.

The Notes to the Accounts referred to in the Auditors' Report are self-explanatory and therefore, do not call for any further
explanation. The Auditors' Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company had appointed Mr. Aspi Bhesania, Practicing
Company Secretary, (ICSI membership number: 6119 C.P. n0.9657) as its Secretarial Auditors to conduct the secretarial
audit of the Company for the financial year 2019-20. The Company provided all assistance and facilities to the Secretarial
Auditors for conducting audit. The Report of Secretarial Auditor for the financial year 2019-20 is annexed to this report as
Annexure 4. There are no observations, reservations or adverse remarks in the Secretarial Audit Report.

DISCLOSURES:
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of Independent Directors namely Mrs. K C. Maniar (Chairman), Mr. A. B. Desai, Mr. A. T.
Krishna kumar and also Managing Director Mr. G. M. Gandhi. All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee
were accepted by the Board during the Financial Year 2019-20.

Vigil Mechanism

In line with the provisions of Listing Regulations, the Companies Act, 2013 and the principles of good governance, your
Company has devised and implemented a vigil mechanism, in the form of 'Whistle Blower Policy', for the directors and
employees to report genuine concerns in such manner as, may be prescribed. Such a vigil mechanism shall provide for
adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use such mechanism and also make provision for direct
access to the chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. The Policy on vigil mechanism
and whistle blower policy may be accessed on the Company's website at www.pinc.co.in

Meetings of the Board

Six (6) meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year. For further details, please refer separate report on
Corporate Governance forming part of Annual Report.

Declaration from Independent Directors

The Company has received declaration from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they meet with
the criteria of independence as per sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and also the criteria of
independence as mentioned in Regulation 16(1)(b) and Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('Listing Regulations').



Particulars of Loans given, Investments made, Guarantees given and Securities provided

Details of loans, guarantees and investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act are given in the
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Earnings and Expenditures

The Company has no activities involving conservation of Energy and Technology absorption.

The Company's foreign exchange earnings and expenditures during the year under review are Nil.
Secretarial Standard

The Company complies with all applicable mandatory secretarial standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

Extract of Annual Return
Extract of Annual Return of the Company is annexed herewith as Annexure 5 to this Report.
Familiarization Programs for Independent Directors

Independent Directors of the Company are provided with required information and clarification to enable them to
familiarise with the Company's procedures and practices. Details of programs that were undertaken for familiarizing the
Independent Directors can be accessed on the Company's website at www.pinc.co.in.

Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the IEPF Authority (Accounting, Audit,
Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“the Rules”), all unpaid or unclaimed dividends which remains unclaimed or unpaid
for seven years from the date of transfer to unpaid account, are required to be transferred by the Company to the IEPF
established by the Central Government.

Further, according to the Rules, the shares in respect of which dividend have not been claimed or paid to the
shareholders for seven consecutive years or more shall also be transferred to Demat Account created by the IEPF
Authority.

a) Dividend

The Company has transferred the unclaimed Dividend of 2011-12, due to transfer to IEPF during the year end
under review. Members wishing to claim dividends, which have remained unclaimed, are requested to
correspond with Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) or Company Secretary at the Company's
registered office.

b) Shares

Further, the corresponding shares will be transferred as per the requirements of IEPF rules, details of which
will be provided on Company's website www.pinc.co.in.

Particulars of Employees and related disclosures

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement showing the names of the top ten employees in terms
of remuneration drawn and names and other particulars of the employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limits
set out in the said rules forms part of this Report. Disclosures relating to remuneration and other details as required
under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms part of this Report. Having regard to the provisions of the second proviso to Section 136(1)
of the Act and as advised, the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid information is being sent to the members of the
Company. Any member interested in obtaining such information may write to the Company at email id -
investor.relations@pinc.co.in

19



The Board of Directors affirms that the remuneration paid to employees of the Company is as per the Nomination and
Remuneration Policy of the Company.

General

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no
transactions on these items during the year under review:

1. Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.
2. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

3. lIssue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme save and except
ESOS referred to in this Report.

4. The Company does not have any scheme of provision of money for the purchase of its own shares by employees or by
trustees for the benefit of employees.

5. Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company receive any remuneration or
commission from any of its subsidiaries.

6. No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going
concern status and Company's operations in future.

7. Nofraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board.
8. There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.

Your Directors further state that during the year under review, there was no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Acknowledgments

The Board wishes to express its deep appreciation to all the staff members for their excellent contribution and to the
Bankers, shareholders and customers for their continued support.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Mumbai G. M. Gandhi A T Krishnakumar
11th November, 2020. Managing Director Director
(DIN - 00008057) (DIN - 00926304)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This Report is pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

INTRODUCTION

Your Company continued to strengthen its core business of Investment Banking both Debt and Equity, and Financial
Advisory Services by way of providing gamut of customized services to its clients in the form of raising capital, debt,
formulating capital structure, debt restructuring, project finance, and other corporate financial advisory services and
further trying to establish its foothold in the area of secondary capital market like open offer in Takeovers, Preferential
issue, Rightissue, Buy-back, Mergers and Amalgamation, and valuation assignment.

CORPORATE STRUCTURE

As reported last year, the structure of Company's Subsidiaries and nature of their activities remains unchanged during
the year end under review, which is as follows:

1. Infinity.Com Financial Securities Ltd. — Trading cum Clearing Member of NSE, BSE & Depository Participant - CDSL,
Trading member in currency Derivatives of MESL-SX;

2. Pioneer Wealth Management Services Ltd.; (Registered Portfolio Manager with SEBI)

3. Pioneer Fundinvest Pvt. Ltd. —a Non Banking Finance Company (Not accepting Public Deposit);
4. Pioneer Commodity Intermediaries Pvt. Ltd.;

5. Pioneer Money Management Ltd.; and

6. PioneerInvestment Advisory Services Ltd.

Industry structure and development

The global economy grew at 2.4% in the FY 2019-20, slowing from 3% in Previous Year 2018-19 amid global trade war,
tariff related uncertainties, and Brexit. Global trade environment remained challenging due to heightened trade tensions.
The Indian economy grew by 4.2% in FY 2019-20 still remaining one of the fastest growing major economies in the world.
Industrial activity remained healthy in the beginning of the year, but saw some weakness later. Auto sales suffered due to
weak credit conditions, demand softness, and change in regulatory norms.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS
Opportunities

Government emphasis on “Aatma Nirbhar Bharat Abhiyan” focussing on importance of manufacturing in India and
reducing reliance on Import, not only provide opportunities to Domestic entrepreneurs and SMEs to grow in India but will
also provide them strength to compete globally and strengthening India's trade deficit.

Threats

Global Slow-down due to COVID-19 and border tension between India and its neighbouring countries and increase of
tension in relationship between developed countries could impact the growth of developing countries like India.

OUTLOOK
Global Factors

Global growth outlook has changed since the outbreak of COVID-19. There has been coordinated global monetary policy
easing and fiscal support from governments. These policy support measures would act as cushions offsetting weakness
in growth to some extent. However, global economic activity is likely to contract in 2020 and global growth environment
will remain challenging in the shortterm.
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Indian Economy

Indian economy will also suffer in near term of 2020 on account of COVID-19. However, thrust on policy initiatives
continued by Government of India. FY 2019-20 saw consolidation of Public Sector Banks, which should strengthen the
banking sector. Non-performing loans in the banking sector have come down to 9.3% from more than 10% before FY
2019-20. Resolution under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC) is bringing procedural predictability with higher
recovery rates (43% in 2019 vs 14% in 2017). With continued policy initiatives, India further continued its climb in the Ease
of Doing Business rankings, climbing up 14 places to reach the 63rd rank. India is the only major country to have moved
up by 67 places in just 4 years. FY 2019-20 also saw corporate tax cut being announced, further easing business
environment. Government also announced significant rebates for new manufacturing units to attract global supply
chains. Outbreak of COVID-19 would make growth environment challenging in first half of FY 2020-21 but liquidity
measures announced by the government should help provide support.

Segment wise Performance

The year end under review was similar in comparison to the Company's previous year both for Company's Merchant
banking, Advisory fees and also for Income from Investments activities in Government Securities/SLR and non-SLR
bonds.

At a consolidated level also, groups sees mixture of both incline and decline in income segments, i.e. decline in Fee
Income from Merchant Banking and Advisory fees, and incline in Income from trading in Shares and Securities.

Company's Outlook for its business segments

The relief package announced by Government of India due to COVID-19 pandemic, coupled with strong economic
reforms by Government on Aatma Nirbhar Bharat, expected to provide domestic players big growth momentum, and your
company with its strong entrepreneur leadership, coupled with experienced professional human force will capitalize the
best of improved markets and economic conditions.

Consolidated Financials (Rs. Inlakhs)
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Total Income 4288.35 3634.15
Profit After Tax 311.15 22.04

RISK AND CONCERN

At a macro level, the risk of geo political tension between India and its neighbouring countries, global trade war, presents
risks, many of which are hard to quantify at this stage, which need careful and prompt responses from policymakers.

At the Micro level, economic slowdown due to COVID-19, high inflation due to high crude oil prices and lower credit intake
may put pressure on Indian economy.

Further increase in competition amongst the financial market intermediaries is a concern and can thus impact the
performance of the company.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The features of Company's internal control policy, is to add value and improve the Company's risk and control
environment. The Policy assists the management through its assessments to monitor adequacy, effectiveness, and
adherence to internal controls, processes and procedures instituted by the Management and the extant regulations.

DISCUSSION OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

During the year end under review, both Financial as well as operational performance of the Company and the Group as a
whole, has shown improvement as compared to previous year performance resulting in increase in income of
operations and profit both at standalone and consolidated level.
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MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT AND HUMAN RESOURCES

During the year under review, there was no major senior management change both at Company and Group level and the
Company's management team continued to take necessary steps to retain its human resources which resulted in lower
attrition both at Company and Group level.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Your Company believes that sound governance system, based on relationship and trust, is integral to creating enduring
value for all its stakeholders, management team and its customers. The Company's has defined policy framework for
ethical conduct of businesses. The following disclosure is pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

1.
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Company's philosophy

The Company believes that the essence of Corporate Governance lies in promoting and maintaining integrity,
transparency and accountability in the management's higher echelons. The demands of Corporate Governance
require professionals to raise their competence and capability levels to meet the expectations in managing the
enterprise and its resources effectively with the highest standards of ethics. It has thus become crucial to foster and
sustain a culture that integrates all components of good governance by carefully balancing the complex inter-
relationship among the Board of Directors, Board Committees, Finance and Compliance team, Auditors and the
senior management. Company's employee satisfaction is reflected in the stability of senior management, and
substantially higher productivity.

Board of Directors

a)

b)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Composition of Board

During the year under report, Mr. C. C. Dalal — Independent Non-executive Director resigned on health ground
and Mr. A. T. Krishnakumar and Mr. A. B. Desai were appointed as Independent Non-executive Directors.

At present Mr. G. M. Gandhi, Managing Director represents the Promoters group and three Independent Non
Executive Directors are namely Mr. A. B. Desai, Mrs. K. C. Maniar and Mr. A. T. Krishnakumar.

Other provisions as to Board and Committees
Meetings and attendance record of each Director

During the year under report from 1st April, 2019 to 31st March, 2020, the Board of Directors held six meetings
on 03.04.2019, 30.05.2019, 23.08.2019, 13.09.2019, 12.12.2019 and 14.02.2020.

Mr. C. C. Dalal — Independent Non-executive Director was present in four Board Meetings till his resignation
dated December 12th, 2019. Mr. G. M. Gandhi — Managing Director was present in all the six Board Meetings.
Mr. A. B. Desai was present in five Board Meetings. Mrs. K. C. Maniar was present in three Board Meetings, and
Mr. A. T. Krishnakumar was present in one Board Meeting after his appointment on August 23rd, 2019.

Mr. G. M. Gandhi - Managing Director and all other three Independent Non-executive Director were present in
the last Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Number of other Directorships or committees in which member/chairperson

Mr. C. C. Dalal was not a director in any other company and he was a member of four committees of the
Company till his resignation dated December 12th, 2019. Mr. G. M. Gandhi is a director of 15 other companies,
including holding non-executive independent Directorship in ASI Industries Ltd. a listed Company and he is
also a member of seven Board Committees (including committees of the Company), Mrs. K.C. Maniar is a
director of two other Companies both are listed that is Foods and Inns Ltd. and Muller and Phipps (India) Ltd.
and she is a member of four Board Committees and out of which she is a chairperson of 2 Board Committees of
the Company and Mr. A. B. Desai is a director of one other private Company and he is a member of four Board
Committees of the Company and holding chairmanship of two Board Committees of the Company.

Inter-se Relationship between Directors
There is no inter-se relationship between Directors.
Number of Shares held by Non-executive Independent Directors

None of the Non-executive Independent Directors hold any shares of the Company.



(v)  Familiarisation Programme

In compliance with the requirement of the Listing Regulations, Independent Directors of the Company are
provided with required information and clarification to enable them to familiarise with the Company's
procedures and practices. The details of Familiarisation programme covering overall industry & Company's
business review, financial performance of the Company, statutory and regulatory changes appraised to Non-
executive Independent Directors are uploaded on Company's website under Investor update in the Investor
Column at www.pinc.co.in

(vi) Matrix setting out the Skills/expertise/competence of the Board of Directors

The Directors of the Company are having the required skills , expertise , competences in the field of
Investment Banking, Compliance, Legal, Accounting, Finance, Consultancy, Human Resources, Business
Compliance, and Expertise in various businesses like Broking & Distribution, Wealth Management, Private
Equity, Institutional Equities, .

(vii) This is to confirm that in the opinion of the Board, all the independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified in
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, as amended from time to time and are independent of the management.

(viii) During the year end under review, Mr. C. C. Dalal Independent Non-executive Director resigned before the
expiry of tenure due to health ground.

. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of Mr. C. C. Dalal, Chairman of the Committee — upto December 12th, 2019, Mr. A. B.
Desai, Mr. A. T. Krishnakumar and Mrs. K.C. Maniar, non-executive Independent Directors and Mr. G. M. Gandhi,
Managing Director of the Company. During the year under report the Audit Committee held four meetings and
considered the quarterly, half yearly and audited standalone and consolidated accounts of the Company, approved
related party transactions, and also re-appointment and fixed the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors of the
Company. The Audit Committee also supervised the Internal Financial Control and procedures relating to Internal
Control system. Mr. G. M. Gandhi, Managing Director was present in all four committee meetings. Mr. A. B. Desai,
was present in the three meetings Mrs. K.C. Maniar and Mr. C.C. Dalal were present in two meeting and Mr. A. T.
Krishnakumar was present in one meeting .

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of Mr. A. B. Desai, Chairman of the Committee, Mr. A. T.
Krishnakumar and Mrs. K. C. Maniar, all are non-executive Independent Directors of the Company. This Committee is
constituted mainly to guide the Board in relation to appointment, re-appointment and removal of Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, to evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and
provide necessary report to the Board for further evaluation of the Board, to recommend to the Board on
Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management. The Committee
has adopted a policy in commensurate with size and requirements of the Company and meets as such frequent
internals as may be required. During the year end under review, policy adopted by the Committee worked smoothly as
per the requirement of the Company.

Remuneration of Directors

There are no pecuniary relationships or transactions between the non-executive Directors and the Company except
for payment of sitting fees for the attendance of Board Meeting or Committee thereof. During the year under report,
the Company has paid to the non-executive Directors sitting fee of Rs.10,000/- after deducting TDS for each meeting
of the Board or a Committee thereof attended by them.

Further during the year end under review the Company has paid remuneration to Mr. G. M. Gandhi, Managing Director
of the Company as per Special Resolution passed by the Shareholders of the Company.

. Stakeholders' Grievance Committee

The Company's Stakeholder Grievance Committee comprise of Mr. K. C. Maniar, Mr. G. M. Gandhi, Mr. A. B. Desai
and Mr. A. T. Krishnakumar and Mrs. K. C. Maniar, non —executive Director is the Chairperson of this Committee.
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Mr. Amit Chandra, Company Secretary of the Company is appointed as Compliance Officer of the Company. During
the year end under review the Company has resolved all the Investors complaints received and there were no
pending complaints at the end of the year.

General Body Meetings

a)

b)

c)

d)

The details of Annual General Meetings held in the last 3 years are as under

Year Day, Date and Time Venue

2016-2017 Friday, 22nd September

2017-2018 Friday, 22nd September, Same as above

2018-2019 Tuesday, 24th September, Same as above

Kilachand Conference Room,2nd floor,

2017 at 11.30 a.m. Indian Merchant Chambers, IMC Marg,

Churchgate, Mumbai-400020

2018 at 11.30 a.m.

2019 at 11.30 a.m.

Special Resolutions/business transacted at the last three Annual General Meeting were as follows.

Year Matter

2016 - 2017 Nil
2017 - 2018 Nil

2018 - 2019 To appoint Mr. Athreya Tyagarajan Krishnakumar (DIN: 00926304) as Independent

Director.

During the year under review, the Company on 16th May, 2019, through the process of Postal Ballot has
obtained shareholders approval, on the following resolution passed by majority vote.

i)

i)

iii)

iv)

V)

Special Resolution to authorise Board of Directors to borrow money pursuant to the provisions of Section
180(1)(C) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013.

Special Resolution to authorise Board of Directors to create security (ies)/mortgage property(ies) of the
Company pursuant to Section 180(1)(a) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013.

Special Resolution to authorise Board of Directors to make loan(s) and/or investment(s) and/or to provide
guarantee(s) and/or security(ies) to the bodies corporate and/or any other person, situated within or
outside the country, as the case may be, pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013.

Special Resolution to authorise Board of Directors for issuance and allotment of Secured Non-Convertible
Debentures (“NCD's”) aggregating upto Rs.300 Crores, in such tranches and on such terms and
conditions to be decided by the Board of Directors.

Special Resolution to Re-appoint Mr. Gaurang Gandhi (DIN: 00008057), as Managing Director for a period
of 3 years and fixing his remuneration.

The person in charge of the above mentioned postal ballot exercise were Mr. Gaurang Gandhi, Managing
Director (DIN: 00008057) and Mr. Amit Chandra, Company Secretary (ACS: 13742), of the Company.

As on date, the Company does not have any plans to pass Special Resolution through Postal Ballot.



8. Means of communications

9.

The quarterly, half-yearly and yearly financial results along with Press Release of the said Results of the Company are
sent to the Stock Exchange immediately after the Board approves the same. Further the Company publishes Press
Release of the Results as per the statutory format in one National daily English newspaper and one regional language
newspaper in the city in which the registered office of the Company is located and uploaded the Financial Results and
Press Release on the Company's Website: www.pinc.co.in

General Shareholders information

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

9)

The Annual General Meeting of the Company through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio-Visual Means
(“OAVM”) will be held on Thursday, 17th December, 2020, at 2.30p.m.

Financial calendar

Financial Reporting for Quarter | - Within 45 days from the end of quarter.
(ending June 30, 2020)

Financial Reporting for Quarter Il - Within 45 days from the end of quarter.
(ending September 30, 2020)

Financial Reporting for Quarter Ill - Within 45 days from the end of quarter.
(ending December 31, 2020)

Financial Reporting for Quarter IV - Within 45 days from the end of quarter.
(ending March 31, 2021)

The cut-off date for shareholders who will be eligible for evoting will be Thursday, 10th December 2020.

The Company's Shares are presently listed on BSE Limited, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai -
400023. The Company's Stock code on the BSE is 507864 and the ISIN number is INE746D01014 and the
Company has paid listing fees for the Financial Year 2020-21 to BSE Limited, the only Exchange where shares
of the Company are presently listed;

Share Prices of the Company — High and Low on BSE Limited, for the Financial Year April, 2019 to March, 2020,
were as follows:

(In%)
Month Aprii May June July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March

2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
High 31.40 33.35 31.75 38.00 42.90 42.50 44.80 41.95 47.80 48.00 40.40 39.90
Low 25.65 24.05 21.25 21.70 32.30 35.00 31.00 34.95 31.00 35.40 33.05 19.75

The name, address and telephone and fax numbers of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company
are Satellite Corporate Services Private Limited, Office No. A-106/107, Dattani Plaza, East West Compound, Nr
Safed pool, Andheri Kurla Road, Sakinaka, Mumbai-400072 E-mail: scs_pl@yahoo.co.in Alternate Email Id:
service@satellitecorporate.com Tel no. 28520461 Fax no. 28520462.

The Stakeholder Grievance Committee comprises of Mrs. K.C. Maniar, Mr. A. T. Krishnakumar, Mr. G. M.
Gandhi, and Mr. A. B. Desai. Mr. Amit Chandra, Company Secretary of the Company is appointed as
Compliance Officer of the Company. During the year end under review the Company has resolved all the
Investors complaints received and there were no pending complaints at the end of the year.
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h)

i)

)

k)

m)

n)

Detailed Shareholding pattern of the Company as on 31st March, 2020, is as under:

Sr. No. of Shares Percentage of
No. Category held Shareholding
A Promoter’s holding
1 Promoters 76,15,432 61.93
Sub - Total (A) 76,15,432 61.93
B Non - Promoters Holding
1 Banks and Foreign Institutional Portfolio Investors 4,93,260 4.01
2 Public including Body Corporate 41,88,216 34.06
Sub - Total (B) 46,81,476 38.07
Total (A) + (B) 1,22,96,908 100.00

The distribution of Shareholding of Equity Shares as on 31st March, 2020, is as under:

Sr No of No.of Percentage of No.of Amount in Percentage
No. Equity Shares Share-  total number of Shares Share of
holders Shareholders Capital Shareholding

1 upto 100 2261 53.33 149534 1495340 1.22

2 101 to 500 1341 31.63 356405 3564050 2.90

3 501 to 1000 286 6.75 229425 2294250 1.87

4 1,001 to 2,000 131 3.56 238791 2387910 1.94

5 2,001 to 3,000 62 1.46 156215 1562150 1.27

6 3,001 to 4,000 31 0.73 109974 1099740 0.89
7 4,001 to 5,000 16 0.38 75209 752090 0.61
8 5,001 to 10,000 37 0.87 287444 2874440 2.34
9 10,001 to 20,000 23 0.54 333640 3336400 2.7
10 20,001 to 50,000 15 0.35 435723 4357230 3.54
10 50,001 to Above 17 0.40 9924548 99245480 80.71
TOTAL 4240 100.00 12296908 122969080 100.00

As on 3ist March, 2020, 90.44% of the Company's totals Paid up Equity Shares were held in demat form with
NSDL and CDSL.

The Company's Registered as well as Corporate office is situated at 1218, Maker Chambers V, Nariman Point,
Mumbai — 400 021, Tel. No.: 022- 6618 6633 / 2202 1171, Fax no.:022-2204 9195, email id for investor's
relationis: investor.relations@pinc.co.in, and website: www.pinc.co.in.

This is to confirm that as on date the Company does not have any outstanding Global Depository Receipts or
American depository receipts or warrants or any convertible instruments except ESOPs as disclosed in this
Annual Report.

This is to confirm that as on date the Company does not have any commaodity price risk, foreign exchange risk
and hedging activities.

This is to confirm that as on date the Company does not have any debt instruments or any fixed deposit
programme or any scheme or proposal involving mobilization of funds in India or abroad, for which the
Company has obtained any credit rating.



10. Disclosures

1.

12

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

9)

h)

)

)

Materially Significant related party transactions

There were related party transactions with the related parties in the ordinary course of business as mentioned
in Note no.33 of Financial Statements There were no material significant transactions with related parties,
which are not in the normal course of business.

Penalties or strictures

No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory
authority.

Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy

The company has adopted Vigil Mechanism and whistle blower policy as per the statutory provisions. During
the year, none of the Whistle Blowers have been denied access to the Audit Committee of the Board.

Compliance with Mandatory requirements

During the year end under review, the Company has adhered to all the mandatory requirements of Corporate
Governance norms as prescribed under schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to the extent applicable to the Company.

Policy for determining material subsidiaries

The Policy for determining material subsidiary is uploaded on Company's website at www.pinc.co.in, under
code of conduct and recent updates in the Investor section.

Policy for dealing with Related Party Transactions

The Policy for dealing with Related Party transactions is uploaded on Company's website at www.pinc.co.in,
under code of conduct and recent updates in the Investor section.

Disclosure on Commodity price Risks and commodity hedging activities
The Company does not deal in commodity transactions and commodity hedging activities.

This is to confirm that the Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified
institutions placement as specified under Regulations 32 (7A) during the year end under review.

Mr. Aspi Bhesania, Practising Company Secretary certified that none of the directors of the Company have
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director of the Company by SEBI or
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

Total fees paid to J. D. Jhaveri & Associates, Chartered Accountant (Firm Reg. no. 111850W), Statutory Auditors
on consolidated basis is Rs.703,600/- including GST for the FY 2019-20 for all the services in the listed
Company and two of its subsidiaries.

In terms of the amendments made to the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors confirms that during the
year, it has accepted all recommendations received from its mandatory committees.

There were no complaints in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, during the year end under review.

The Company has complied with all the provisions of Corporate Governance Report of sub para (2) to (10) under
schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to the extent applicable to
the Company.

The Company has complied with all the discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule Il mentioned
under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to the extent applicable to the
Company.
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13. The Company has complied with Corporate Governance requirements specified in regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b)
to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations,
2015 to the extent applicable to the Company.

14. Managing Director Declaration regarding compliance of Code of conduct

| hereby confirm that, all the Directors and the Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the
Code of Conduct of Board of Directors and Senior Management for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2020.

G. M. Gandhi
Mumbai Managing Director
11th November, 2020. (DIN - 00008057)

15. Certificate from Auditors
The certificate of Auditors relating to Corporate Governance is annexed hereto.

AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE

Auditors' Certificate on Compliance with the Conditions of
Corporate Governance under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

To,
The Members of Pioneer Investcorp Limited.
Mumbai.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Pioneer Investcorp Limited (“the
Company”), for the year ended on 31st March, 2020 as stipulated in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was
limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the
conditions of Corporate Governance. Itis neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the
Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the representation
made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For J. D. Jhaveri & Associates
Firm Reg. No. 1118502W
Chartered Accountants

Jatin Jhaveri

Proprietor

M.No.:045072
UDIN:20045072AAAEV4004

Mumbai

30th July, 2020.
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16.

To,

Disclosure with respect to Demat Suspense Account/unclaimed suspense Account.

This is to confirm that Company does not have any shares that are in Demat Suspense Account or unclaimed
suspense Account

MD and CFO Certification

The MD and CFO has issued following compliance certificate pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17 of SEBI
(Listing obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, regarding the Financial Statements for the
year ended 31st March, 2020.

MD and CFO Certification

The Board of Directors

Pioneer Investcorp Limited

1.

We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement of Pioneer Investcorp Limited for the year ended
31st March, 2020 and to the best of our knowledge and belief:

(@i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

(ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's Code of Conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have
evaluated the effectiveness of Company's internal control systems pertaining to financial reporting. We have not
come across any reportable deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls.

We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:
(i) thatthere are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
(ii) thatthere are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year; and

(iii) thatthere are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware.

G. M. Gandhi
Managing Director
(DIN - 00008057)

Mumbai S. M. Kabra
30th July, 2020. Chief Financial Officer
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
Policy on Directors Appointment and Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees
Introduction

In accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has
formulated Remuneration Policy (“the policy”).

The objective of the policy is to ensure that Executive Directors and other employees are sufficiently compensated for
their performance. The Policy seeks to provide criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director.

Criteria for Board Membership
Directors
The Company shall take into account following points:

Director must have relevant experience in Finance/ Law/ Management/ Corporate Governance or the other
disciplines related to company's business.

Director should possess the highest personal and professional ethics, integrity and values.
Director must be willing to devote sufficient time and energy in carrying out their duties and responsibilities.
Independent Director

Independent Director is a director who has no direct or indirect material relationship with the Company or any of its
officers, other than as a director or shareholder of the Company.

Independent Director shall meet all criteria specified in Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and regulations
framed under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time.

Remuneration Policy
Directors

Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall recommend the remuneration, including the commission based on the
net profits of the Company for the Managing Director and Whole time Director and other Executive Directors from time to
time. This will be then approved by the Board and shareholders, if required. Prior approval of shareholders will be
obtained wherever applicable in case of remuneration/Commission to the non-executive directors, if any.

The Company pays remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and allowances (fixed component) and variable pay to
Managing Director, Whole time Director, Senior Management Personnel. Salary to Managing Director, Executive Director
if any will be paid within the range approved by the Shareholders. Annual increments effective will be decided from time to
time, as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and to be approved by the Board. Within the
prescribed ceiling, the perquisites package is approved by the Remuneration Committee.

The remuneration paid to Executive Directors is determined keeping in view the industry benchmark and the relative
performance of the Company to the industry performance. Perquisites and retirement benefits are paid according to the
Company policy as applicable to all employees.

Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed for their professional expertise in their individual capacity as
independent professionals / Business Executives. Independent Non-Executive Directors receive sitting fees for
attending the meeting of the Board and Board Committees within the Statutory limits prescribed under The Companies
Act 2013, as amended from time to time.

Key Managerial Personnel and Other Employees

The remuneration of employees largely consists of basic salary, perquisites, allowances and performance incentives.
Perquisites and retirement benefits are paid according to the Company policy, subject to prescribed statutory ceiling.

32



The components of the total remuneration vary for different grades and are governed by the industry pattern, qualification
& experience / merits, performance of each employee. The Company while deciding the remuneration package takes into
consideration current employment scenario and remuneration package of the industry.

The annual variable pay of managers is linked to the performance of the Company in general and their individual
performance for the relevant year measured against Company's objectives fixed in the beginning of the year.

The Committee will take into accounts the views and suggestions of Mr. Gaurang Gandhi — Managing Director of the
Company, who is in charge of day to day affairs of the Company to review the remuneration structure of KMP and other
employees on ayearly basis, depending upon the factual situation prevailing at that time.

ANNEXURE 2 TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”)

[Pursuantto Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]

The Company's Corporate Social Responsibility Policy may be accessed on the Company's website at www.pinc.co.in

The Company has covered all the activities that are statutory permissible under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules framed there under.

The CSR Committee comprises Mr. A. B. Desai (Chairman), Mrs. K. C. Maniar and Mr. G. M. Gandhi Managing Director,
and Mr. A. T. Krishnakumar. The Company has spent during the year an amount of Rs.13,00,000/- (Rupees Thirteen
lakhs only) that is above 2% of average net profit of the Company during last three financial years.

CSR projects or activities identified Sunrise Education Society
Sector in which the projectis covered Promotion of education in Rural Area
Project or Programs (1) Local Area or other Taloja, Raigad (Maharashtra)

(2) Specify the state and district where projects
or programs was undertaken

Amount outlay (budget) project or program-Wise Rs.13,00,000/-

Amount spend on the projects or programs Subheads
(1)  Direct expenditure on projects or programs. Rs.13,00,000/-

(2) Over-heads —

Cumulative expenditure upto the reporting period Rs.13,00,000/-

Amount spend Direct or through implementing Agency Direct

The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR policy, is in compliance with CSR
objectives and Policy of the Company.

G. M. Gandhi A. B. Desai
Mumbai Managing Director Non-Executive Chairperson
11th November 2020 (DIN - 00008057) (DIN - 01488287)
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ANNEXURE 3 TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

Employee Stock Option Schemes

The Disclosures of existing ESOP Scheme, as on 31st March, 2020, in terms of Clause 12 of SEBI (Employee Stock
Option and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999, are as follows:-

Particulars

a. Total grant authorized by the Plan (No.)

b. Pricing formula on date of grant

c. Variation in terms

d. Options granted during the year (No.)

e. Weighted Average Price per option granted

f. Options vested as of March 31, 2020 (No.)

g. Options exercised during the year (No.)

h. Money raised on exercise of options

I. Options forfeited and lapsed during the year (No.)

j.  Total number of options in force at the end of the year
(No.)
k. Employee-wise details of options granted to

) Senior Management

ii) Any other employee who receives a grant in any one year
of options amounting to 5% or more of options granted
during thatyear.

iii) Identified employees who were granted options, during
any one year, equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued

capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions)
of the Company at the time of grant.

I. Diluted Earning Per Share(EPS) pursuant to issue of
shares on exercise of options calculated in accordance
with (Accounting Standard (AS) 20 Earnings per share).
i) Before Exceptional Items

ii) After Exceptional Items

34

ESOP Scheme - 2007 (Revised).

13,14,000

It is the closing market price of the Shares of the
Company at Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
prior to the day on which the options were granted.

No variations made in the terms of the options
granted.

Nil

%.19.80

8,65,500

Nil

Nil

Nil

11,54,000

Sushant Kumar - 5,00,000 Options
Umesh Tulsyan —1,75,000 Options
Satish Mathur —1,00,000 Options

Sushant Kumar - 5,00,000 Options
Umesh Tulsyan —1,75,000 Options
Satish Mathur —1,00,000 Options

Sushant Kumar - 5,00,000 Options
Umesh Tulsyan - 1,75,000 Options

R.1.77/-
.1.72/-



m.

0.

Particulars

Where the Company has calculated the employee
compensation cost using the intrinsic value of the stock
options, the difference between the employee
compensation cost so computed and the employee
compensation cost that shall have been recognized if it
had used the fair value of the options, shall be disclosed.
The impact of this difference on profits and EPS of the
Company shall also be disclosed.

Weighted - average exercise prices and weighted
average fair values of options shall be disclosed
separately for options whose exercise price either equals
or exceeds or is less than the market price of the stock.

A Description of the method and significant
assumptions used during the year to estimate the fair
value of options, including the following weighted
average information :

(a) Risk free interest rate

(b) Expected life

(c) Expected volatility

(d) Expected dividends

(e) Price of the underlying share in the market at the
time of option grant

ESOP Scheme - 2007 (Revised).

Decrease in profit by . 10,74,516/-
Decrease in Basic/Diluted EPS - %.0.09/-
Decrease in Basic/Diluted EPS - %.0.08/-

Exercise Price -%. 19.80/-
Fair Value -%. 7.69/-

6.66 %

7 - 10 Years
6.85 %
0.51%

3. 19.80/-
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ANNEXURE 4 TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

Pioneer Investcorp Limited

Maker Chamber V, Nariman Point, Mumbai — 400 021

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Pioneer Investcorp Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in
a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing my opinion thereon. Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion,
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31 March 2020 (‘Audit Period') complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company
for the financial year ended on 31 March 2020 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period)

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
('SEBI Act"): —

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 notified on 28
October 2014;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period);
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(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period); and

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Merchant Banking ) Regulations, 1992
(j)) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Portfolio Managers) Regulations, 1993
| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (Not notified hence not applicable to
the Company during the audit period).

(i) Equity Listing Agreement entered with BSE Ltd. and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above.

| further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the relevant
documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has complied with the following laws
applicable specifically to the Company:

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Merchant Banking ) Regulations, 1992;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Underwriting ) Regulations, 1993.

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Portfolio Managers) Regulations, 1993
I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. Adequate notice is given to all directors
to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting. All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out
unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case
may be.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Aspi Bhesania

Practicing Company Secretary
ACS No. 6119, C P No: 9657
UDIN : AO06119B000496961

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24.7.2020
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ANNEXURE 5 TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
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Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31/03/2018
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
And Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Mgt. and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

N

CIN

L65990MH1984PLC031909

1))

Registration Date

23.01.1984

1))

Name of the Company

Pioneer Investcorp Limited

IV) | Category / Sub Category of the Company Public / Limited by Shares
V) | Address of the Registered Office and 1218, Maker Chambers V, Nariman Point Mumbai - 400021
Contact Details Maharashtra, India. Tel: +91-22-66186633
Fax no.: +91-22-22049195
VI) | Whether listed Company Yes
VIl) | Name, Address and Contact details of Satellite Corporate Services Private Limited

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Office No. A-106/107, Dattani Plaza, East West Compound, Nr
Safed pool, Andheri Kurla Road, Sakinaka Mumbai-400072
E-mail: service@satellitecorporate.com

scs_pl@yahoo.co.in
Tel No. +91-22-28520461/62

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

SN | Name and Description of NIC Code of the % tototalincome
main products / services Product/service of the company

1 Investment Banking & Advisory Services 6719 15.15

2 Income from Trading in Government 6599 84.85
Securities

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
[No. of Companies for which information is being filled]]

S. | NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % of Shares Applicable
NO | COMPANY SUBSIDIARY/ held Section
ASSOCIATE
1 Infinity.com Financial Securities U67120MH199 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)
Limited 4PLC078100
1216, Maker Chambers V, Nariman
Point, Mumbai - 400 021.
2 Pioneer Commodity Intermediaries U51909MH200 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)
Private Limited 3PTC142071
1219, Maker Chambers V, Nariman
Point, Mumbai—400 021.
3 Pioneer Fundinvest Private U65990MH198 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)
Limited 1PTC025972

1218, Maker Chambers V, Nariman
Point, Mumbai—-400 021.



http://scs_pl@yahoo.co.in

S. | NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % of Shares Applicable
NO | COMPANY SUBSIDIARY/ held Section
ASSOCIATE
4 Pioneer Wealth Management U67120MH200 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)
Services Limited 6PLC161354
1218, Maker Chambers V, Nariman
Point, Mumbai—400 021.
5 Pioneer Money Management U67190MH200 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)
Limited 6PLC161353
1218, Maker Chambers V, Nariman
Point, Mumbai—400 021.
6 Pioneer Investment Advisory U74140MH200 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)
Services Limited 6PLC161672
1218, Maker Chambers V, Nariman
Point, Mumbai—400 021.
IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Share Holding
Category No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the % Change
of beginning of the year end of the year during
Shareholders [As on 31-March-2019] [As on 31-March-2020] the year
Demat | Physical Total | % of Total Demat | Physical Total | % of Total
Shares Shares
A. Promoter s
(1) Indian
a) Individual 7482461 0| 7482461 60.85 | 7615432 0 | 7615432 61.93 1.08
/ HUF
b) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
c) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
d) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
f) Any other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
Sub-total (A)(1) 7482461 0| 7482461 60.85 | 7615432 0 | 7615432 61.93 1.08
(2) Foreign
a) NRIs- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
Individuals
b)Other — 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
Individuals
c) Bodies Corp 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
d) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
e) Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
Sub-total(A)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
Total shareholding
of Promoter
B=RA)DN+(A)(2) 7482461 0| 7482461 60.85 | 7615432 0 | 7615432 61.93 1.08
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Category No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the % Change
of beginning of the year end of the year during
Shareholders [As on 31-March-2019] [As on 31-March-2020] the year
Demat | Physical Total | % of Total Demat | Physical Total | % of Total
Shares Shares
ESOP 56530 0 56530 0.46 54030 0 54030 0.44 -0.02
|IEPF 135722 0 135722 1.10 214829 0 214829 1.75 0.64
Sub-total (B)(2) 1654705 | 2666482 4321187 35.14 | 3038625 1149591 4188216 34.06 -1.08
Total Public 9604226 | 2692682 | 12296908 100.00 11121117 1175791 | 12296908 100.00 0.00
Shareholding(B)
=(B)(+(B)(2)
C. Shares held 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
by Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total 9604226 | 2692682 | 12296908 100 1121117 1175791 | 12296908 100 0.00
(A+B+C)
(ii) Shareholding of Promoters-
SN Shareholder's Shareholding at the beginning Share holding at the end % change
Name of the year of the year in share
[As on 31-March-2019] [As on 31-March-2020] holding
No. of | % oftotal | 9of Shares No. of | % of total | %of Shares | Guring
- Sh ¥ ) Pledged the year
Shares ares of| pledged / Shares | Shares of| Pledged/
the encumbered the encumbered
company | to total company | to total
shares shares
1 Gaurang Manhar 7376428 59.99 36.59 7509399 61.07 53.67 1.08
Gandhi
2 Hemang Manhar 36683 0.30 0 36683 0.30 0 0.00
Gandhi
3 Ketan Manhar Gandhi 68850 0.56 0 68850 0.56 0 0.00
4 Ami Ketan Gandhi 500 0.00 0 500 0.00 0 0.00
(iii) Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
SN Shareholder's Shareholding at the Beginning Date Increase Reason Culmulative
Name of the Year (01 April 2019) / /(Decrease) Shareholding
End of Year (31 March2020) in during the Year
No. of % of total Shareholding No. of |% of total
Shares Shares of the Shares |Shares of
company the
company
7376428 55.64 01.04.2019 7376428 59.99
1 Gaurang Gandhi -
27.12.2019 5000 |Acquired 7381428 59.75
Shares from
31.12.2019 11000 |Secondary |7392428 60.12
10.01.2020 27161 | Market 7419589 |  60.34
13.03.2020 54294 7473883 60.78
20.03.2020 22350 7496233 60.96
27.03.2020 11337 7507570 61.05
31.03.2020 1829 7509399 61.07
7509399 61.07 31.03.2020 7509399 61.07




Category No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the % Change
of beginning of the year end of the year during
Shareholders [As on 31-March-2019] [As on 31-March-2020] the year
Demat | Physical Total | % of Total Demat | Physical Total | % of Total
Shares Shares
B. Public
Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
b) Banks / FI 500 26200 26700 0.22 500 26200 26700 0.22 0.00
c) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
d) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
e) Venture 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
Capital Funds
f) Insurance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
Companies
g) Flls / FPIs 466560 0 466560 3.79 466560 0 466560 3.79 0.00
h) Foreign Venture 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
Capital Funds
i) Others(specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
Sub-total (B)(1) 467060 26200 493260 4.01 467060 26200 | 493260 4.01 0.00
2. Non-
Institutions
a) Bodies Corp 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
i) Indian 517197 | 976600 1493797 12.15 480412 951300 1431712 11.64 -0.51
ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
b) Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh 8700 | 1682982 | 1691682 13.76 1161796 191991 | 1353787 11.01 -2.75
ii) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
in excess of
Rs 1 lakh 823358 0| 823358 6.70 844206 0| 844206 6.87 0.17
c) Others(specify)
Non Resident 41444 6900 48344 0.39 39407 6300 45707 0.37 -0.02
Indians
Directors & 10000 0 10000 0.08 10000 0 10000 0.08 0.00
Relatives
Hindu Undivided 55371 0 55371 0.45 218199 0 218199 1.77 1.32
Families
Clearing Member 6383 0 6383 0.05 15746 0 15746 0.13 0.08
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SN Shareholder's Shareholding at the Beginning Date Increase Reason Culmulative
Name of the Year (01 April 2019) / /(Decrease) Shareholding
End of Year (31 March2020) in during the Year
No. of % of total Shareholding No. of |% of total
Shares Shares of the Shares |Shares of
company the
company
68850 0.56 01.04.2019 68850 0.56
2 Ketan Gandhi No Change
68850 0.56 31.03.2020 68850 0.56
. 36683 0.30 01.04.2019 36683 0.30
3 Hemang Gandhi No Change
36683 0.30 31.03.2020 36683 0.30
500 0.00 01.04.2019 500 0.00
4 Ami Gandhi No Change
500 0.00 31.03.2020 500 0.00
(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
SN Shareholder's Shareholding at the Beginning| Date (+)Increase /| Reason Culmulative
Name of the Year (01 April 2019) / (-)Decrease Shareholding
End of Year (31 March2020) in during the Year
No. of % of total Shareholding No. of | % of total
Shares Shares of the Shares | Shares of
company the
company
1 Silver Stallion 466560 3.79 01.04.2019 466560 | 3.79
Limited No Change
466560 3.79 31.03.2020 466560 | 3.79
2 Devangan 200000 1.63 01.04.2019 200000 1.63
Consultancy No Change
Pvt Ltd 200000 1.63 31.03.2020 200000 1.63
3 Anuradha 200000 1.63 01.04.2019 200000 1.63
Multitrade No Change
Pvt. Ltd 200000 1.63 31.03.2020 200000 1.63
4 Akshar 200000 1.63 01.04.2019 200000 1.63
Computech No Change
Pvt Ltd 200000 1.63 31.03.2020 200000 1.63
5 Agantuk 200000 1.63 01.04.2019 200000 1.63
Properties No Change
Pvt Ltd 200000 1.63 31.03.2020 200000 1.63
156027 1.27 01.04.2019 156027 1.27
Mahendra Sold the
6 Girdharilal 22.11.2019 (4445) Shares in 151582 1.23
Secondary
151582 1.23 31.03.2020 Market 151852 1.23
7 Kamlesh 0 0.00 01.04.2019 0| 0.00
N Shah -
21.02.2020 95000 | Acquired 95000 | 0.77
gharesd from
econaary
28.02.2020 H750 | o ket 136750 1.1
136750 1.1 31.03.2020 136750 1.1

42




SN Shareholder's Shareholding at the Beginning Date (+)Increase /| Reason Culmulative
Name of the Year (01 April 2019) / (-)Decrease Shareholding
End of Year (31 March2020) in during the Year
No. of % of total Shareholding No. of | % of total
Shares Shares of the Shares | Shares of
company the
company
8 Investor 135722 1.10 01.04.2019 135722 1.10
Education and
Protection 22.11.2019 72297 208019 1.69
13.12.2019 6810 214829 1.75
31.03.2020 214829 1.75
9 Sadabahar 125000 1.02 01.04.2018 125000 1.02
Properties No Change
Pvt Ltd 125000 1.02 31.03.2019 125000 1.02
156027 1.27 31.03.2019 156027 1.27
10 A Plus Arts 100000 0.81 01.04.2018 100000 0.81
Pvt Ltd No Change
100000 0.81 31.03.2019 100000 0.81
(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
SN | Shareholder's Shareholding at the Beginning Date (+)Increase /| Reason Culmulative
Name of the Year (01 April 2019) / (-)Decrease Shareholding
End of Year (31 March2020) in during the Year
No.of | % of total Shareholding No. of |% o total
company the company
1 Gaurang Gandhi 7376428 59.99 01.04.2019 7376428 59.99
- Managing 27.12.2019 5000 |Acquired 7381428 59.75
Director Shares
31.12.2019 11000 |from 7392428 60.12
10.01.2020 27161 nsn‘;ﬁl‘(’:tda” 7419589 60.34
13.03.2020 54294 7473883 60.78
20.03.2020 22350 7496233 60.96
27.03.2020 11337 7507570 61.05
31.03.2020 1829 7509399 61.07
7509399 61.07 31.03.2020 7509399 61.07
2 Anand Desai -
0 0 01.04.2019 0 0
Independen_t No Change
Non executive
Director 0 0 31.03.2020 0 0
3 Kamlini Maniar - 0 0 01.04.2019 0 0
Independent No Change
Non executive Director 0 0 31.03.2020 0 0
4 Athreya T. 0 0 01.04.2019 0 0
Krishnakumar — No Change
Independent 0 0 31.03.2020 0 0
Non executive Director
5 Sanjay Kabra — 2045 0.02 01.04.2018 2045 0.02
KMP No Change
2045 0.02 31.03.2019 2045 0.02
6 Amit Chandra — 12000 0.10 01.04.2018 12000 0.10
KMP No Change
12000 0.10 31.03.2019 12000 0.10
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V. INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for

payment as on 31st March, 2020.

Secured Loans | Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 718922429 0 20000000 738922429
ii) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0
Total (i+ii+iii) 718922429 0 20000000 738922429
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
* Addition 0 0 0 0
* Reduction 324715468 0 0 324715468
Net Change 324715468 0 0 324715468
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 394206961 0 20000000 414206961
ii) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0
Total (i+ii-iii) 394206961 0 20000000 414206961
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
SN | Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount
Mr. Gaurang Gandhi —
Managing Director
1 | Gross salary 15350000* 15350000*
a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) 0 0
of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act,1961 0
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 0
Income- tax Act, 1961
Stock Option
Sweat Equity
Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5 | Others, please specify 0 0
Total (A) 15350000* 15350000*
Ceiling as per the Act *Refer Note

* Remuneration paid within the limits specified in the Special Resolution passed by the Shareholders of the
Company through Postal Ballot on 16th May, 2019.



B. Remuneration to other Directors

SN Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount
Mr. C. C. Dalal | Mr. A.B. Mrs. K.C. | AT
(upto 12th Dec, | Desai Maniar Krishnakumar
2019)
1 Independent Directors (Non-executive)
Fee for attending board committee meetings 80000 110000 60000 30000 280000
Commission 0 0 0 0 0
Others, please specify 0 0 0 0 0
Total (1) 80000 110000 60000 30000 280000
2 Other Non-Executive Directors
Fee for attending board committee meetings 0 0 0 0 0
Commission 0 0 0 0 0
Others, please specify 0 0 0 0 0
Total (2) 0 0 0 0 0
Total (B)=(1+2) 80000 110000 60000 30000 280000
Total Managerial Remuneration 15630000*

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

*Refer Note

*Qut of which Remuneration of Rs.1,53,50,000 paid to Mr. Gaurang Gandhi, Managing Director within the limits specified in the
Special Resolution passed by the Shareholders of the Company through Postal Ballot on 16th May, 2019.

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
SN | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
CEO CS CFO Total
Mr. Amit Mr. Amount
Chandra Sanjay
Kabra
1 | Gross salary 0 2865341 6164000 9029341
a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) 0 0 0 0
of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act,1961 0 0 0 0
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 0 0 0 0
Income- tax Act, 1961
Stock Option
Sweat Equity
Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5 | Others, please specify 0 0 0 0
Total (A) 0 2865341 6164000 9029341
VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: None
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ANNEXURE 6 TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL)
RULES, 2014

46

i)

ii)

iii)

v)

vi)

vii)

Viii)

The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company
for thefinancial year 2019-20 is 14.21 (Previous year 13.50);

The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
during the financial year 2019-20 are uneven and are not comparable as compared to previous Financial year
because of non recurring income / expenditure during the year end under review ;

The percentage increase in median remuneration of employees as compared to the previous year is not
comparable because of non recurring income / expenditure;

46 number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2020;

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than managerial personnel in the
last financial year and its comparison with percentile increase in the managerial remuneration are uneven and
are not comparable as compared to previous Financial year because of non recurring income / expenditure;

The increase in remuneration of managerial personnel in comparison to previous year is not comparable as
compared to previous financial year because of non recurring income / expenditure; and

It is affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Managing Director, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and other
employees is as per remuneration policy of the Company.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To

The Members of Pioneer Investcorp Ltd.,
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Standalone Financial Statements of M/s. Pioneer Investcorp Ltd (“the Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive
Income), Statement of changes in Equity and Statement of Cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial
Statements, including a Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone
Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st
March, 2020, its Profit, changes in Equity and its Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our Audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our Audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Sr | Key Audit Matter
No.

Auditor's response

1. | Transition to Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) | Principal Audit Procedures

We have performed the following audit procedures in
order to obtain sufficient audit evidence:

The Company has adopted Ind AS notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”)
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 from April 01, 2019 and the
effective date of such transition is April 01, 2018.

* Assessed the Company's process to identify the
impact of adoption and transition to the new
accounting standards;

Ind AS is new and complex accounting standards
which require considerable judgment and
interpretation in its implementation. Further, Ind AS
101 (“First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards”) allows two categories of exceptions to

¢ Evaluated the design of internal controls and tested
the operating effectiveness of key internal controls
around the process of preparation of Standalone
Financial Statements;

the first-time adopters which mainly include
prohibition to retrospective application of certain

* Reviewed the exemptions availed by the Company
from certain requirements under Ind AS;
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Sr.

No.

Key Audit Matter

Auditor's response

requirements of Ind AS and exemption from some
requirements of Ind AS. We consider this transition
and the required disclosure to be a key audit matter
because new accounting policies have been
developed by the Company to comply with these
standards and judgment. Note 1 “Significant
Accounting Policies”, Note on “Fair value hierarchy”,
“Market risk”, "Liquidity Risk" and*“ Reconciliation of
Balance Sheet, Total Other Comprehensive Income,
Equity and Cash flows as per previous GAAP to Ind
AS, to the standalone Financial Statements provide
detailed information on the significant policies,
critical judgment and estimation along with details of
exemptions applied from certain requirements under
Ind AS based on which this Standalone Financial
Statements is prepared.

Principal Audit Procedures

¢ Obtained an understanding of the governance over
the determination of key judgments;

e Evaluated and tested the key assumptions and
judgments adopted by management;

* Assessed the disclosures made against the relevant
Ind AS; and

eDetermined the appropriateness of the
methodologies and models used along with the
responsibility of the outputs.

Measurement of Investments in accordance with Ind
AS 109 “Financial Instruments”

On initial recognition, Investments are recognized at
fair value, in case of Investments which are
recognised at fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL), its transaction cost is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the
transaction costs are attributed to the acquisition
value of the investments.

The Company's investments are subsequently
classified into following categories based the
objective of its business model to manage the cash
flows and options available in the standard:

¢ Debtinstruments at amortised cost

* Debt instruments and equity instruments at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

e Equity instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income FVTOCI.

The Company has assessed following two business
model:

- Heldto collect contractual cash flows

- Realising cash flows through the sale of
investments. The Company makes decisions
based on the assets' fair values and manages the
assets to realise those fair values.

Since valuation of investments at fair value involves
critical assumptions, significant risk in valuation and
complexity in assessment of business model, the

Principal Audit Procedures

¢ Obtained an understanding of Company's business
model assessed in accordance with Ind AS 109.

Evaluated the Company's assessment of business
model.

¢ Obtained an understanding of the determination of
the measurement of the investments and tested the
reasonableness of the significant judgments applied
by the management.

Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to
the measurement and also tested the operating
effectiveness of the aforesaid controls.

Obtained valuation certificate of independent valuer
in respect of fair value investments

Ensured that the Company has used valuation
techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.

Assessed the appropriateness of the disclosure in
the standalone financial statements in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting framework.
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Sr. | Key Audit Matter Auditor's response
No.
valuation of investments as per Ind AS 109 is
determined to be a key audit matter in our audit of the
financial statements.
3. | Loans and impairment loss allowance Principal Audit Procedures

The value of loans as at March 31, 2020 is significant
and there is a high degree of complexity and
judgment involved for the Company in estimating
individual and collective credit impairment provisions
and write-offs against these loans. The Company's
model to calculate expected credit loss (“ECL”) is
inherently complex and judgment is applied in
determining the correct construction of the three
stage impairment model (“ECL Model”) including the
selection and input of forward- looking information.
ECL provision calculations require the use of large
volumes of data. The completeness and reliability of
data can significantly impact accuracy of the modeled
impairment provisions. The accuracy of data flows
and the implementation of related controls are critical
for the integrity of the estimated impairment
provisions.

We have started our audit procedures with
understanding of the internal control environment
related to impairment loss allowance. Our procedures
over internal controls focused on recognition and
measurement of impairment loss allowance. We
assessed the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of the selected key controls
implemented by the Company.

We also assessed whether the impairment
methodology used by the Company is in line with Ind
AS 109 “Financial instruments” requirements.
Particularly, we assessed the approach of the
Company regarding definition of default, Probability of
Default, Loss Given Default and incorporation of
forward-looking information for the calculation of ECL.

For loans which are assessed for impairment on a
portfolio basis we performed particularly the following
procedures:

* We read and understood the methodology and policy
laid down for loans given by the Company.

¢ We have verified the existence of recovery process
plan in the event of default.

* We have verified the historical trends of repayment of
principal amount of loan and repayment of interest;

¢ We tested the reliability of key data inputs and related
management controls;

* We checked the stage classification as at the
balance sheet date as per definition of default of the
Company;

* We have assessed the assumptions made by the
Company in making provision considering forward
looking information.
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Other Information

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company's Annual Report, but does not include the Standalone Financial
Statements and our Auditors' Report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the Audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in Equity and Cash Flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error. In preparing the Financial Statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative butto do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor's Report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an Audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the Audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform Audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain Audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the Audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our Auditor's Report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our Auditor's Report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the Audit and significant Audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our Audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.
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As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper Books of Account as required by law have been kept by the Company in so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow
Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books
of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31st March, 2020 and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from being
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Reportin “Annexure B”

dg. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Standalone Ind
AS financial statements. Refer note 28 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.



(iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

For J.D. Jhaveri & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 111850W

Jatin Jhaveri

Proprietor

M.No.: 045072

UDIN: 20045072AAAE04573
Mumbai, 30th July, 2020
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

The Annexure referred to in the Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the Company on the Standalone IND-AS
financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020, we report that:

0

(i)

(i)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(vii) (@)
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(b)

The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
of fixed assets;

A substantial portion of these fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

In our opinion and according to the information & explanation given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

As explained to us, the inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management. The
intervals at which the inventories are physically verified are, in our opinion, reasonable in relation to the size of
the Company and the nature of its business. The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory and no
material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

As informed to us & on the basis of our examination of the books of accounts & other relevant records, The
Company has granted loans to five bodies corporate covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act').

In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which the loans had been granted to the
bodies corporate listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act were not, prima facie, prejudicial
to the interest of the Company

In the case of the loans granted to the bodies corporate listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Act, the borrowers have been regular in the payment of the principal and interest as stipulated.

There are no overdue amounts in respect of the loan granted to a body corporate listed in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Act.

In our opinion & according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans given, investments made,
guarantees and security given by the Company.

In our opinion & according to the information & explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public during the year. Therefore paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information & explanation provided to us, the Central Government has not prescribed the
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information & explanations provided to us & on the basis of our examination of the books of
accounts & other relevant records, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. As explained to us,
there were no undisputed statutory dues as mentioned above in arrears as at 31st March, 2020 for a period of
more than 6 months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, details of disputed statutory dues which have not
been deposited or partially deposited are as follows:

Name of the Statute Nature of Dues = Amountdisputed Period to which the Forum where

(64) amountrelates (FY.) dispute is pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 76,55,100 2010-11 CIT(A)
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 117,02,092 2011-12 CITA)
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 216,789 2012-13 CIT(A)



(viii)

(ix)

x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

In our opinion and according to the information & explanation given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to banks or
financial institutions.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer including debt
instruments during the year. The Company has availed of term loans during the year and the same has been
applied for the purpose it has been taken;

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information & explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company
and therefore the compliance requirements relevantto a Nidhi Company are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information & explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, all transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and according to the information & explanation given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, no preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures has been made by the Company during the year under review.

According to the information & explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with him/her as specified under the provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013,

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1(A) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and
therefore the provisions of paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable.

For J.D. Jhaveri & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 111850W

Jatin Jhaveri

Proprietor

M.No.: 045072

UDIN: 20045072AAAE04573
Mumbai, 30th July, 2020
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) referred to in paragraph 2 (f) on Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our report.

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to the standalone financial
statements of Pioneer Investcorp Ltd (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion the Company has in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2020,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
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regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For J.D. Jhaveri & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 111850W

Jatin Jhaveri

Proprietor

M.No.: 045072

UDIN: 20045072AAAEQ04573
Mumbai, 30th July, 2020
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020.

ASSETS

Financial Assets

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Bank Balance other than above
Receivables

Loans

Investments

Inventories

Other Financial Assets

Total Financial Assets “A”
Non-Financial Assets

Current Tax Assets (Net)

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Other Intangible Assets

Other Non-Financial Assets

Total Non-Financial Assets “B”
Total Assets “A” + “B”
EQUITIES & LIABILITIES

Financial Liabilites

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
Deposits

Other Financial Liabilites

IIA”

Non-Fianancial Liabilties
Porvisions
Other Non-Financial Liabilites

HB”
Total Liabililites “”7 - “A” + “B”
Equity
Equity Share Capital
Other Equity

“IIH
Total Equity & Liabilites “7 +4I1”

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

Note
No.

w

0N OBN

10
1

12
13

14
15
16

17
18

19
20

31.03.2020 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
g 3 3
27,353,412 127,083,189 53,684,305
898,040,703 650,902,292 476,547,534
41,330,790 680,132 18,561,047
579,042,798 609,906,538 606,353,296
12,335,658 492,227,376 306,208,361
47,811,823 21,847,529 17,518,475
1,605,915,184 1,902,647,056  1,478,873,018
7,641,308 18,337,853 5,881,559
11,902,968 10,761,230 11,797,090
50,523,581 43,486,238 33,313,941
— 1,104,283 1,104,283
14,453,492 16,144,381 20,165,340
84,521,349 89,833,985 72,262,213
1,690,436,533 1,992,481,041 1,551,135,231
394,206,961 718,922,429 304,031,648
20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000
25,565,547 21,288,373 7,442,363
439,772,508 760,210,802 331,474,011
17,425,988 16,256,670 16,086,256
3,312,834 8,478,763 4,026,506
20,738,822 24,735,433 20,112,762
460,511,330 784,946,235 351,586,773
128,946,972 128,946,972 128,946,972
1,100,978,231 1,078,587,834  1,070,601,486
1,229,925,203 1,207,534,806  1,199,548,458
1,690,436,533 1,992,481,041 1,551,135,231

As per report of even date attached

For J.D. Jhaveri & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 111850W

Jatin Jhaveri

Proprietor

M.No.: 045072

UDIN: 20045072AAAEQ04573
Mumbai, 30th July, 2020
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Managing Director
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Director
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CFO
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Director

(DIN - 00926304)

K.C.Maniar

Director

(DIN - 06926167)

A.J.Chandra

Company Secretary
Mumbai, 30th July, 2020



PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020.

Revenue from operations

Fee Income

Income from Trading in Securities
Net gain on fair value changes
Other Income

Total Income

EXPENSES

Finance Cost

Employee Benefit Expenses
Depreciation and Amortization Cost
Other Expenses

Total Expenses

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORETAX
Tax Expense

Current Tax

Earlier Years Tax

Deferred Tax

PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAX

Other comprehensive income
l. ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

ii. Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss

iii. ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

iv. Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss

Other Comprehensive Income

Total comprehensive income

Earning Per Equity Share

Before Exceptional Items - Basic/Diluted

Significant accounting policies

Note
No.

21

22
23
24

25
26
1

27

1-2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

31.03.2020 31.03.2019

i 3
47,558,542 56,996,610
266,378,803 267,029,990
29,318,017 (14,789,736)
7,929,717 7,185,175
351,185,079 316,422,039
104,587,761 71,482,757
133,401,217 174,415,557
10,315,955 9,469,976
68,872,733 58,873,153
317,177,666 314,241,443
34,007,414 2,180,596
(1,837,735) (3,385,065)
(11,560,230) 5,642,154
1,141,739 (1,035,861)
21,751,188 3,401,823
(149,936) 2,447,362
37,735 (839,935)
751,409 2,977,098
639,209 4,584,525
22,390,397 7,986,349
1.77 0.28

As per report of even date attached

For J.D. Jhaveri & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 111850W

Jatin Jhaveri

Proprietor

M.No.: 045072

UDIN: 20045072AAAEQ04573
Mumbai, 30th July, 2020

G.M.Gandhi
Managing Director
(DIN - 00008057)

A.B.Desai
Director
(DIN - 01488287)

Sanjay Kabra
CFO

A.T.Krishnakumar

Director

(DIN - 00926304)

K.C.Maniar

Director

(DIN - 06926167)

A.J.Chandra

Company Secretary
Mumbai, 30th July, 2020
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CASHFLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020.

A

62

For the Year

31.03.2020
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 34,007,414
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 10,315,955
Finance costs 104,587,761
Fixed Assets written off 1,104,283
Rent received (120,000)
Interest received (6,695,651)
Profit on Sale of Investments (40,634,115)
Ind AS adjustment(transition reserve) 639,209
Changes in Other comprehensive Income —
69,197,442

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 103,204,856
Changes in working capital:
Inventories 479,891,719
Trade receivables (247,138,412)
Loans (40,650,658)
Other Current Assets (24,273,406)
Current Liability (888,755)
Provisions 1,169,319

~ 168,109,807
Cash generated from operations 271,314,663
a.Direct Taxes (Paid) (2,701,420)
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A) 268,613,243
Cash flow from / (used in) investing activities
a.Purchase Of Property , plant and equipment (17,353,298)
b.Purchase of Investments (49,564,798)
c.Sale of Investments 121,062,654
d.Rent received 120,000
e.Interest received 6,695,651
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B) 60,960,209
Cash flow from / (used in) financing activities
a.Borrowings -Net of Repayment (324,715,468)
b.Interest Paid (104,587,761)

— (429,303,229)
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities ( C) (429,303,229)
Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash
equivalents (A+B+C) (99,729,777)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year 127,083,189

Cash acquired on amalgamation =

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 27,353,412

For the Year

31.03.2019

2,180,596
9,469,976
71,482,757
(120,000)
(7,065,175)
(914,386)
4,584,525

77,437,697

79,618,293
(186,019,015)
(174,354,758)
17,880,915
(308,094)
18,298,267
170,414

(324,332,271)

(244,713,978)

(10,199,205)

(254,913,183)
(19,642,273)
(53,119,460)
50,480,600
120,000
7,065,175

(15,095,958)
414,890,782
(71,482,757)

343,408,025

343,408,025

73,398,884

53,684,305

127,083,189



CASHFLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020.

Cash and Cash equivalent as per above Comprises of the following
Cash and cash equivalent as per Note no. 3

- cash in hand
- Balances with Banks (on current accounts)

Bank overdraft / cash credit (Note 15B)
Balance as per statement of cash flows

Figures in brackets represent outflows

Notes :

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
i 3
658,081 158,090
26,695,331 126,925,099
27,353,412 127,083,189
27,353,412 127,083,189

1.The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind

AS 7) statement of cash flows.

2.Additon to property, plant and equipment include movements of capital work progress during the year.

As per report of even date attached G.M.Gandhi
For J.D. Jhaveri & Associates Managing Director
Chartered Accountants (DIN - 00008057)
Firm Reg. No.: 111850W
A.B.Desai
Director

Jatin Jhaveri (DIN - 01488287)

Proprietor
M.No.: 045072 Sanjay Kabra
UDIN: 20045072AAAEQ4573 CFO

Mumbai, 30th July, 2020

A.T.Krishnakumar

Director

(DIN - 00926304)

K.C.Maniar

Director

(DIN - 06926167)

A.J.Chandra

Company Secretary
Mumbai, 30th July, 2020
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NOTE -1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Pioneer Investcorp Limited ("the Company") is a listed Company having its registered office at 1218, Maker Chambers V,
12th Floor, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400021 and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act,1956. The
Company is a SEBI Registered Category | Merchant Banker. The Financial statements are approved for issue by the
Company's Board of Directors on July 30, 2020.

NOTE -2
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.01

2.02

Basis of preparation and presentation of financial statements

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
("Ind AS") notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act"), read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under
the historical costconvention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured
atfair values, and on the basis of accounting principle of a going concern in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements have been presented in accordance with schedule llI-Division lll General Instructions
for Preparation of financial statements of a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) that is required to comply
with Ind AS.

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013,
read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP or previous GAAP).
These financial statements for the year ended March 31,2020 are the first financials which the Company has
prepared in accordance with IndAS.

Refer to note 39 for information on how the Company has adopted Ind AS.

First-time adoption of Ind AS

Ind AS 101 requires that all Ind AS effective for the first Ind AS financial statements, be applied consistently and
retrospectively for all fiscal years presented. However, this standard provides some exception and exemption to

this general requirement in specific cases.

The application of relevant exception and exemption are

Exceptions to retrospective application of other Ind AS

66

(a)

(b)

Estimates:

An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with
estimates made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference
in accounting policies),unless there is an objective evidence that those estimates were in error. The Company
has not made any changes to estimates considered in accordance with Previous GAAP.

Ind AS 109-Financial Instruments (Classification and measurement financial assets):

Classification and measurement shall be made on the basis of facts and circumstances that exist at the date of
transition to IndAS. The Company has evaluated the facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition to
IndAS for the purpose of classification and measurement of financial assets and accordingly has classified and
measured the financial assets on the date of transition.



Exemptions from retrospective application of Ind AS

(a

(b)

(c)

2.03

2.04

2.05

Ind AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment/ Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets : If there is no change in the functional
currency, an entity may elect to measure an item of property, plant and equipment /Intangible assets at the date
of transition to Ind AS at its fair value and use that fair value as deemed cost at that date or may measure the
property, plant and equipment/intangible assets by applying Ind AS retrospectively or use the carrying amount
under Previous GAAP on the date of transition as deemed cost.

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying amount for all of its Property, Plant and Equipment and
Intangible Assets ,measured as per Previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition
i.e. April 01, 2018

Ind AS 27 Separate Financial statements: An entity is required to account for its investments in subsidiaries,
jointventures and associates either:

(a) atcost; or
(b) in accordance with Ind AS 109.

Such cost shall be cost as per Ind AS 27 or deemed cost. The deemed cost of such an investment shall be its fair
value on the date of transition to Ind AS or Previous GAAP carrying amount at that date. The Company has
elected to measure its investment in subsidiaries at deemed cost being carrying value as previous GAAP.

Ind AS 109-Financial Instruments: Ind AS 109 permits an entity to designate a financial liability and financial
asset (meeting certain criteria) at fair value through profit or loss. A financial liability and financial asset shall be
designated at fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of facts and circumstances that exist at the date of
transition.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (the functional currency). Indian rupee is the functional
currency of the Company.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity of Ind AS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and contingent liabilities at the date of financial
statements, income and expenses during the year. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in future periods which are affected.

Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates and assumption having the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are:

- Valuation of financial instruments

- Measurement of defined employee benefit obligation
- Useful life of property, plant and equipment

- Useful life of investment property

- Provisions

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
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2.06

68

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the assetin its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for
non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operations.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Management varies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature,characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

Ind AS 115 "Revenue from contracts with Customers" provides a control-based revenue recognition model and
provides a five step application approach to be followed for revenue recognition.

A) Identify the contract(s) with a customer;

B) ldentify the performance obligations;

C) Determinethetransaction price;

D) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations;

E) Recognise revenue when or as an entity satisfies performance obligation.



Revenue from operations
Sale of Services
Merchant banking fees

Revenue from merchant banking fees includes arranger fees, advisory fees, lead manager fees are recognized
when the Company satisfies performance obligation. Lead manager fees are recognised over a point of time.
The Company measures its progress towards satisfaction of performance obligation based on output method
i.e. milestone basis. Revenue from arranger services and advisory services are recognised point in time.

Brokerage
Revenue from brokerage is recognised pointin time.
Interest Income

Under Ind AS 109, Interest income is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross
carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified as
measured at fair value through Profit and loss (FVTPL).

The EIR in case of a financial assetis computed

a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
assetto the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.

b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instruments in estimating the cash flows

c. Including all fees received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs, and all other premium or discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest income with the
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.

Net gain on Fair value changes

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as fair value through the profit or loss held
by Company on the balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain/loss. In cases there is a net gain in
the aggregate, the same is recognised in "Net gains on fair value changes" under revenue from operations and if
there is a netloss the same is disclosed under "Expenses" in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPL and debt instruments
measured at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income ("FVTOCI") is recognised in net gain\loss on fair
value changes.

However, net gain / loss on derecognition of financial instruments classified as amortised is presented
separately under the respective head in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised

a. Whentheright to receive the paymentis established.

b. itis probable thatthe economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and
c. the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably

Rental Income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.
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2.08
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Taxes

The tax expense for the period comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to items recognised in the other comprehensive income or equity. In
which case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or equity.

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet
date.

Current income taxes are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items recognized
outside profit or loss,either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates position taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subjected to interpretation and establishes provisions, where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statementsand the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realised , based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and
assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that suffcient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs, and
any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on
foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets.

Subsequent Cost

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity
and the cost can be measured reliably.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated as per the estimated useful life of assets prescribed by the Schedule Il to the
Companies Act 2013.

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the lease period.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Estimated useful life of the assets is as under:

Class of Assets Useful life in Years
Buildings 60
Computers 3

Office Equipment 5
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Vehicles 8

Software 3



2.09

2.10

2.11

Derecognition

An item of property plant & equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Upon first time adoption of IND-AS, the Company has elected to measure all its property, plant and equipment at
the Previous GAAP carrying amount at its deemed cost on the date of transition to IND-AS i.e. April 01, 2018.

Intangible assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes less accumulated amortisation and
impairment loss, if any.

The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to
its working condition for the intended use and net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments
arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the intangible assets.

The Company has elected to continue with the previous GAAP carrying amount of all intangible assets as
deemed cost at the date of transitioni.e. April 01, 2018

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill
and brands, are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Derecognition

An item of intangible asset and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
assetis included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets comprising of Software are amortised on a straight line basis over its estimated useful life or
maximum 3 years, whichever is shorter.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as afinance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that
cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The contingent liability is not recognized in books
of account but its existence is disclosed in financial statements.
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A contingent assets, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, an entity shall disclose a brief
description of the nature of the contingent assets at the end of the reporting period, and, where practicable, an
estimate of their financial effect, measured using the principles set out for provisions in Ind AS 37.

Impairment of assets
a) Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial
assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no
significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The Company applies a
simplified approach in calculating Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on trade receivables. Therefore, the
Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 months ECL,
unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are
measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the
loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an
impairment gain or loss in the Statement of profit or loss.

b) Non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company
estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset.
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets.

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement of Pro[Jt and
Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated
amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value, in case of Financial assets which
are recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost are attributed to the acquisition value of the financial
asset.

Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at

Amortised cost: Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (“EIR”) method less impairment, if
any. The amortization of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL): A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVOCI, is
classified as FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, except



interest income and dividend income if any, recognized as “Net gain on fair value changes “ in the Statement of
Profitand Loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Financial assets that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income
measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is reclassified from the equity to
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period, the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Trade Receivables and Loans:

Trade receivables are initially recognized at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses. The EIR is the rate that discounts
estimated future cash income through the expected life of financial instrument.

Debt Instruments:

Debt instruments are initially measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”) or fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) till derecognition on the basis of (i) the entity's
business model for managing the fnancial assets and (ii) the contractual cash fow characteristics of the
financial asset.

(a) Measured at amortised cost: Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (“EIR”) method less
impairment, if any. The amortisation of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

(b) Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income: Financial assets that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and collecting contractual
cash fows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI
is reclassifed from the equity to “other income” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c) Measured at fair value through profit or loss: A financial asset not classifed as either amortised cost or
FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Such [Jnancial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair
value, except interest income and dividend income if any, recognized as “Net gain on fair value changes “ in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest income /dividend income on financial assets measured at FVTPL is
recognised separately from "net gain on fair value changes” in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity Instruments:

All investments in equity instruments other than investments in subsidiary companies classified under financial
assets are initially measured at fair value , the Company may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure
the same either at FVTOCI or FVTPL.

The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equity
instrument is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected to measure such
instrument at FVTOCI. Fair value changes excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVTOCI
are recognised in OCI. Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit
and Loss. Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, orittransfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset.
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Financial Liabilities:
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at
fair value and in the case of borrowings trade payables and other financial liabilities, net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilities include borrowings, trade payables, deposits and other
financial liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Financial liabilities
carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(a) Borrowings: Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Pro[Jt and Loss over the period of the borrowings
using the EIR method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of
the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

(b) Trade and Other Payables: These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the
Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

(c) Deposits: They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method

(d) Financial guarantee contracts: The Company on case to case basis elects to account for financial guarantee
contracts as afinancial instruments or insurance contracts, as specified in Ind AS 109 on Financial instruments
or Ind AS 104 on Insurance contracts . The Company has regarded its financial guarantee contracts as
insurance contracts. At the end of each reporting period the Company performs liability liquidity test (i.e. it
assesses the likelihood of a pay out based on current undiscounted estimates of future cash flows ), and any
deficiency is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.

The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries

Investments in equity instruments including deemed equity instruments of subsidiaries are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the
investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in
subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal proceeds and carrying amounts are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Upon first time adoption of IND-AS, the Company has elected to measure all its Investments in equity
instruments of subsidiaries at the Previous GAAP carrying amount at its deemed cost on the date of transition to
IND-AS i.e. April 01, 2018.

Segment Reporting:

Based on "Management Approach" as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision
Maker evaluates the Company's performance and allocates the resources based on an analysis of various
performance indicators by business segments.

Segment Policies:

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing
and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole. Common allocable costs are allocated to
each segment on an appropriate basis.

Segment information:
Companies whole business is being considered as one segment.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above,as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

Retirement benefits
i) Defined contribution plans (Provident fund)

In accordance with Indian Law, eligible employees receive benefits from Provident Fund and Labour welfare
fund which is defined contribution plan. In case of Provident fund, both the employee and employer make
monthly contributions to the plan, which is administrated by the Government authorities, each equal to the
specific percentage of employee's basic salary. The Company has no further obligation under the plan
beyond its monthly contributions. Obligation for contributions to the plan is recognised as an employee
benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred.

ii) Defined benefit plans (Gratuity)

In accordance with applicable Indian Law, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement
plan (the Gratuity Plan) covering eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lumsump payment to
vested employees, at retirement or termination of employment, and amount based on respective last drawn
salary and the years of employment with the Company. The Company's net obligation in respect of the
Gratuity Plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefits that the employees have earned in
return of their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present
value. Any unrecognised past service cost and the fair value of plan assets are deducted. The discount rate
is yield at reporting date on risk free government bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of
the Company's obligation. The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the recognised asset is limited
to the total of any unrecognised past service cost and the present value of the economic benefits available in
the form of any future refunds from the plan or reduction in future contribution to the plan.

The Company recognises all remeasurements of net defined benefit liability/asset directly in other
comprehensive income and presented within equity.

iii) Shortterm benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as a
related service provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short term cash
bonus or profit sharing plans if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount
as aresult of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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iv) Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled to leave as per the leave policy of the Company. The liability in
respect of unutilized leave balances is provided at the end of year and charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Lease
Company as a Leasee

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116.
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing
the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The Company determines the
lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend
the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a
lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to
exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company
revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease. The discount rate is generally
based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with
similar characteristics.

Right of use assets

The Company as a lessee The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings.
The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company
has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of
twelve months or less (short-term leases), variable lease and low value leases. For these short-term, variable
lease and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be
exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct
costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease term or useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying value may not be recoverable. For the
purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sale and the
value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are
largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the
Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using
the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with
a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether
it will exercise an extension or a termination option.
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Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have
been classified 